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About us
Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand is your gateway
to a knowledge network of over
100,000 skilled minds ‘in the
know’ about business and finance,
around the world.

stronger together
2015

The Australian and New Zealand
Institutes joined forces to form
a new professional body in
response to the unique challenges
and opportunities of today’s
commercial environment. In the
constant global battle for fresh
ideas that make financial sense,
today’s forward looking Chartered
Accountant offers the right skills
and mindset.
Not surprisingly, this blend of
ingenuity and sound financial
reasoning has placed our members
among the most trusted leaders in
business and finance.
We provide a platform for a
stronger global voice and greater
access to more useful services,
while building on the rich legacies
of our founding organisations.

Coming together is a beginning; keeping together is progress;
working together is success.
Henry Ford
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CEO AND PRESIDENT’S REPORT

The 2015 financial year has been one of transition, as we finalised
the journey towards becoming a single entity, consolidating the
strengths, history and capabilities of our founding organisations.
We now stand together as the first cross-border
organisation of our kind, brought together by the
vision, energy and commitment of the many teams and
members involved in the transformation project.

Looking ahead, we’ll continue to serve our members,
delivering a sustainable, high-performing organisation,
while pursuing growth in our member base – in
Australasia and around the world.

When we started this process, we had some clear
goals: to preserve and grow the pre-eminence of our
designation; to remain relevant to members, business
and the broader community; and to extend our reach –
giving us greater influence when it comes to advocacy
and policy issues.

We’ve called this report ‘together’ – reflecting not
only our new reality as an organisation, but also
our approach to the future. That’s because working
together is what will make us stronger.

We’ve spent the past year building an organisation
that’s optimised to achieve these goals, creating a
new brand, governance framework, organisational
structure, culture and technology platform to better
serve our members, no matter where they’re located –
work we’ll continue in the coming year.
This has inevitably led to significant change. On the one
hand, we’ve been proud to witness the blossoming of
new teams with the energy and focus to take us into
the future. At the same time, we would like to express
our deep appreciation to the individuals who continued
to serve through the transition with professionalism
and commitment – even when they knew that their
time with us was coming to a close.

By sharing expertise through education, thought
leadership and forums. By working with government to
advocate for beneficial policy development. By creating
formal and informal networks between members and
growing and strengthening our membership base.
Through world-class business conferences and forums.
And, most critically, by listening to what our members
have to say.
We believe that together, we will shape Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand to be ready
and optimised to meet future trends and challenges
– and deliver a relevant and valuable service to
our members, to our profession and to the broader
business community.

The success of our new organisation can be seen in the
financial synergies we’ve achieved, the strength of our
brand, our influence in the business community, the
member-centric culture we’ve built, and the common
vision we’re working to achieve.

FRED HUTCHINGS FCA
President
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LEE WHITE FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Lee White FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Fred Hutchings FCA
President
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CHAIR’S REPORT

If there is one lesson from the past year, it’s that change isn’t
something to be feared – it’s something that can provide great
opportunities to those who embrace it.
In today’s world, Chartered Accountants face new
challenges every day – from structural shifts in the
economy and increased global competition, to a new
frontier of digital disruption. It’s how we respond that
will really make a difference.

While we’ve made great progress, the work isn’t yet
done. And we know that, whatever we do, more change
is inevitable. But with the right foundations in place,
we’ll be well-equipped to not only keep up – but help
drive changes that can benefit us all.

Our new organisation and brand reflect the belief
that Chartered Accountants are the trusted leaders in
business and finance. This positioning recognises and
promotes the importance of the role we play in shaping
and growing the businesses we’re involved with.

I want to acknowledge the retiring board members and
the extensive contribution they have made, particularly
through the amalgamation and transition process.
I also thank those staff members who have left our
legacy organisations for their efforts.

This in turn benefits our communities, at both a local
and national level. We do this through advocacy that
helps us create a prosperous future, and the protection
of the critical financial and business acumen that helps
our businesses give back to our communities through
investment and employment.

We owe a significant debt to Craig Norgate who
oversaw our transition with his customary passion,
drive and focus. The results achieved speak for
themselves. His passing was a moment of great
sadness and his loss is felt keenly.

Over the past 12 months, we’ve undergone a lot of
change – change we believe was necessary to create an
organisation that’s fit for the future, which can attract
the brightest talent to our profession and support our
members throughout their careers. And we’ve extended
our member base and reach, with the introduction of
provisional memberships for students currently enrolled
in the Chartered Accountants Program.

Finally I would like to thank the current board
members, our Chief Executive and all our people for
their commitment, and our members for your support
over the past year. While we will always have more
to do we can reflect positively on what has been
accomplished together.

We have also started executing our strategies; building
support infrastructure for our members in Asia and the
UK, broadening our thought leadership, continuing to
improve our Chartered Accountants Program, laying
the foundations for more relevant lifelong learning,
positioning for growth and investing in technology to
better support members.

Murray Jack FCA
Chair
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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

OUR RESULTS

PRE-EMINENCE

We promised…

and we delivered…

Preserving our designation

Cost savings from economies of scale

A$20 million* – exceeding the target of A$15.8 million

We promised…

and we delivered…

Increased and enhanced member services

• A combined Shared Services centre based in
Wellington, providing operational support, call
centre and library services for members

Our training is renowned for its rigour and quality and
for producing individuals known for their innovative
thinking and superior analytical skills. The code of ethics
that our members adhere to is respected and valued
by business leaders around the world. Our members’
commitment to lifelong learning ensures that their
expertise remains relevant.

• New member lounge at our Erskine Street office
• Significant ongoing investment in education and
technology to provide better service to members

RELEVANCE
Keeping ahead in a changing world
We are broadening our range of products and services
to meet ever-changing business and community needs
– and increasing accessibility for members around the
world. As roles continue to become more specialised,
products and services will be tailored to facilitate our
members’ career progression.

REACH

We promised…

and we delivered…

Reduced annual membership fee

10% reduction†

We promised…

and we delivered…

Accelerated growth in membership

• We now have more than 90,000 members and
20,000 provisional members

Extending our influence

• We’ve added 4,088 new members as a result of
careers engagement programmes

As a global organisation, we have a strong voice
on issues relating to the profession and business
community, and in upholding the public interest.

• Enrolments for the Chartered Accountants Program
increased by 3.6% on the previous year

We promised…

and we delivered…

Greater global recognition and influence

• New brand launched
• New offices opened in Hong Kong, Singapore, Kuala
Lumpur and London
• future[inc] and Acuity magazine launched
• 137 policy submissions

* Savings in the 2015 financial year.
The financial synergy achievement was assessed independently by Ernst & Young and the report accepted by the Board in April 2015.
†
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A further reduction in the annual membership fee for 2015 (includes foregone inflation increase).
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KEY EVENTS

FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT*

“Everything we’ve done this year has been to create a stronger, more
relevant and more influential organisation for our members.”
Lee White FCA, Chief Executive Officer

REVENUE

$110.8
MILLION
TOTAL REVENUE

$13.7
MILLION

MILLION

increase in total revenue

increase in membership
revenue

UP 14.1%

2014

$5.9
July

Brand launch:
Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand
Acuity magazine launch
Academic paper:
The Accounting Profession’s
Engagement with Asia

EXPENSES

$104.6
MILLION
TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

0.3 %
decrease in
administration expenses,
due to synergy savings
$0.2 MILLION

$8.0

18.2 %

19.2 %

MILLION
increase in expenditure

increase in information
technology expenses

increase in cost
of service expenses

UP 8.3%

TO $1.7 MILLION

MOU signed with Institute
of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW)

August
future[inc]: first New Zealand
edition: A Plan for New Zealand’s
Continued Prosperity

$0.4

$0.5

$0.5

MILLION

MILLION

MILLION

investment in new
education and training
programmes

investment in opening and
operating international
offices in the UK, Singapore,
Hong Kong & Malaysia

investment in the
development of
future[inc]

Submission:
Financial Systems Inquiry

September
future[inc]: Is Policy Making
Measuring up?
MoneySmart week:
official supporter

SURPLUS

$6.2

10

MILLION

MILLION

UP FROM
$0.5 MILLION
SURPLUS IN 2014

NET INCREASE
IN CASH
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CLOSING CASH
RESERVES
$50.7 MILLION

Leadership in Government
Awards

Business Forum
conferences launched
in Australia and New Zealand

AGM – ACT
future[inc]: Protecting our
Cyber Future

December
AGM – Institute of Chartered
Accountants Australia
AGM – New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants
future[inc]: Risk-Wise and a
Fair Go – A Plan for Australia’s
Continued Prosperity

2015

future[inc]: Revolutionising
Reporting: Why Care?

May
Chartered Accountants Program
Ambassadors appointed
Hong Kong office opens
World Business Forum
sponsorship
future[inc] launched in Asia
Hosted delegation from Institute
of Chartered Accountants India

February

future[inc]: Fast forward:
Leading in Brave New World of
Diversity

future[inc]: Digital Currencies:
Where To From Here?

March

October

Business Valuation and Forensic
Accounting Conference

New brand guidelines issued to
members in Public Practice

Legally recognised
as Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand

New Fellowship
award criteria launched
in Australia to align with
New Zealand

Mission Exceptional: student
competition

New Chartered Accountant
certificates available

January

Employment Guide App launch

AGMs (all states and territories
excl. ACT)
*Financial results include the full year activity of the entity
previously known as Institute of Chartered Accountants
Australia (now Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand) plus the activities of the entity previously known
as New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (the NZ
members) for the period since amalgamation on 31 December
2014. For more information, see Financial report for the year
ended 30 June 2015 on page 79.

April

SMSF Conference

CASH RESERVES

$4.5

November

MOU: Mutual credit recognition
between Singapore Accountancy
Commission (SAC) for Singapore
Qualification Program
(Singapore QP)

June
Kuala Lumpur office opens
Australian Professional
Conduct Review completed with
recommendations to the Board
New Erskine Street
Members’ Lounge opened
future[inc]: Noise, Numbers and
Cut-Through

Smithink 2020 partnership
Singapore office opens

STRONGER TOGETHER 2015
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educate
This year we made our education
programmes even stronger, with
a fresh approach to learning,
integrated infrastructure and
new technology – to support you
at every stage of your career.

12

The Chartered Accountants Program

15

Lifelong learning

16

Creating better conferences

17

Attracting tomorrow’s business leaders

18
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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

THE CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS PROGRAM

PRE-EMINENCE
• Developed new education strategies and started
work on a new Educational Design framework
• Established partnerships that give members access
to the latest technology

We’re updating the Chartered Accountants Program to give
graduates the skills to be the business leaders of tomorrow.

• Started work on a third-party accreditation process
for courses and training

RELEVANCE
• Conducted a relevance review of the Chartered
Accountants Program
• Launched an integrated Chartered Accountants
Program across Australia and New Zealand, and
issued New Zealand Chartered Accountants Program
graduates with the same post-graduate qualification
as their Australian peers
• Reinvigorated the Business Forum, with the new
approach to conferencing to be rolled out to other
events in 2016

REACH

16,197

3,440

19,637

3.6 %

Australian
enrolments

New Zealand
enrolments

Total
enrolments

Increase
from previous
financial year

• Increased Chartered Accountants Program
enrolments by 3.6%, to 19,637
• Graduated 2,843 people from the Chartered
Accountants Program
• Added 4,088 members through our careers
engagement programme

CELEBRATING OUR GRADUATES
In 2015, 2,843 accountants successfully completed
the Chartered Accountants Program. And for the
first time, New Zealand graduates received the
same qualification as their Australian peers, with an
internationally recognised post-graduate diploma.

STRENGTHENING THE PROGRAM

PUTTING YOUR EDUCATION IN YOUR
HANDS
In 2016, we’ll deliver a new student management
system across Australia and New Zealand – replacing
two legacy systems. The My Learning system will
provide a better student experience, regardless of
location, and make it easier to enrol and manage your
learning online.

This year, we reviewed the relevance of the Chartered
Accountants Program, bringing together the best of
the New Zealand and Australian coursework – and
updated it to meet today’s needs.
We’ve also selected and implemented a new Learning
Management System, Blackboard, to help us deliver and
assess the Program online. This will help bring us in line
with best-practice in adult education, giving students
access to a range of flexible and convenient learning
tools, while protecting the qualification’s integrity.

14

EDUCATE 2015

EDUCATE 2015

15

LIFELONG LEARNING

Our members perform over

1
200000
0
Continuing Professional Development hours
each year

CREATING BETTER CONFERENCES

Business Forum 2015 was the first conference to adopt
our new conference experience – in the coming year,
we’ll be rolling it out across our other events, starting
with the 2016 Public Practitioners Forum.
The past year also saw us extend the reach of our
workshops and seminars, with new locations added to
the event calendar. Our Winter Tax and Superannuation

seminars reached a record number of regions in
Australia – from Mt Gambier to Tamworth. And in
New Zealand, the Tax Roadshow visited 22 locations
across the country, providing greater access to learning
opportunities for our regional members.

Business Forum 2015
Sound thinking. Ingenious ideas.

Over the past year, we’ve reviewed the education
programmes available in Australia and New Zealand,
selecting and combining the best from each location.
We’re also creating a new member-centric business
education programme to meet your needs throughout
your career, whether you want to specialise or broaden
your skills.

CREATING EDUCATION PARTNERSHIPS
We’re working to give our members access to the best
professional education available. So we’re reviewing
our accreditation requirements to identify leading
providers and programmes, to extend the education
programmes we offer.

We’ve already formed some valuable partnerships,
including one with Cahoot Learning that provides
members with access to the prestigious Stanford
University in the US. As part of the Stanford
Professional Certificate in Innovation and
Entrepreneurship, the Tools of Innovation course
comes straight from the heart of Silicon Valley.
We’ve also partnered with accounting innovation
company Smithink 2020 on its technology forum,
giving members an opportunity to learn more about
the latest solutions for their business, from a range of
technology providers.

The 2015 Business Forum demonstrated our redefined
approach to connecting our members to each other
and to their professional development.
We asked members in each region what they wanted
from the event: relevance, experience and flexibility.
We then created a conference that delivered just that.
The 2015 Forum brought together speakers, peers
and experts, including outstanding leading keynote
speakers from Singapore and the US. But this year’s
conference also delivered a richer event experience for
members, creating an engaging platform where you
could network and share knowledge – before, during
and after the event itself.

4,000+

NEW TO BUSINESS FORUM IN 2015
Event App – to scan in and out
of sessions and access maps,
timetables, speaker profiles and
other real-time conference news –
automatically updating CPD hours
Connect – a lounge where
speakers and participants
can connect and talk
following a session
Recharge – interactive sessions
enabling greater participation
and networking opportunities

ATTENDED THE 2015 BUSINESS
FORUM IN SIX LOCATIONS ACROSS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

“Over the past 12 months, we’ve laid the groundwork to help us deliver a lifelong
learning programme that speaks to the aspirations of Chartered Accountants to be the
leaders in business and finance.”
Jason Dale FCA, Head of Education
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MEMBER PROFILE

Attracting tomorrow’s

BUSINESS LEADERS
We’re working to attract the best talent,
engaging students at school and university.

EMPLOYMENT EVENING

MISSION EXCEPTIONAL

BRAND CHAMPIONS

2,000

1,600

140

UNIVERSITY STUDENTS

STUDENTS DOWNLOADED

NEW BRAND CHAMPIONS

ATTENDED OUR

MISSION EXCEPTIONAL

IN AUSTRALIA AND

EMPLOYMENT EVENING

CHALLENGE

NEW ZEALAND

Held in March 2015, Employment

The Mission Exceptional Boardroom

Our Brand Champions programme

Evening was our flagship

Challenge is a search for the brightest

enlists students within universities

event, attracting students from

young business minds across Australia

to act as our ambassadors. This

universities across Australia and

and New Zealand. The major prize-

year, we rolled out the programme

New Zealand.

winners, Angus Dow and William

in New Zealand for the first time.

Roxburgh, flew to Singapore in

We’ve also signed up around 14,000

December to job-shadow American

new student affiliates, keeping them

Express Director, Kevin Kan, gaining

connected throughout their

valuable business experience.

student career.

EMPLOYMENT GUIDE APP

MEET THE BUSINESS LEADER

1,650

1,800

EMPLOYMENT GUIDE

STUDENTS ATTENDED

APP DOWNLOADS

MEET THE BUSINESS

IN 4 MONTHS

LEADER EVENTS

Launched in March 2015,

Meet the Business Leader series is

Employment Guide App gives

our main event for senior high school

Australian students and graduates

students. With events in Australia and

access to job opportunities from

New Zealand, Meet the Business Leader

leading accounting employers.

gives students an insight to an exciting
business career.

EDUCATE 2015

GREENMOUNT FOODS – TAURANGA NZ

Choosing the right career can be difficult. When deciding between becoming
a chef, doctor or accountant, Joelene Ranby wasn’t sure which path to take.
Now a Chartered Accountant and business owner, she’s confident she made
the right choice.
Joelene says that completing the Chartered
Accountants Program has opened up more options
than she would have had if she had chosen another
career.

Joelene has also applied her skills in setting up her
own business, Resolution Retreats, which runs women’s
weight loss and health retreats in the Bay of Plenty
region.

“The best thing about being a Chartered Accountant is
that you don’t just learn about financial statements. It
really does give you broad knowledge across business
in general, not just accounting.”

“It’s really exciting that I get to help everyday
women with their body challenges and improve their
confidence and their health.”

She says that the rigour of the qualification has
provided a strong foundation for her role as Group
Financial Controller at Greenmount foods.

CAREERS FAIRS
Market Days and Orientation Weeks
are some of the best times for students
to learn about initiatives outside their
chosen course. So we make regular
appearances at these events.

18

JOELENE RANBY CA

“Starting your own business is exciting and nervewracking but it also has huge rewards. Being a
Chartered Accountant has helped me do that.”

“Being a Chartered Accountant means that you have a
position of responsibility for the financial stewardship of
the company,” she says.
“When a Chartered Accountant speaks, people listen.
They’ve got a lot of knowledge, and usually a lot of
experience due to the requirements of the Program.”

EDUCATE 2015

19

serve
We are here to serve our
members and our profession.

Working together to improve performance

20

23

Upholding professional conduct standards

24

Improving your member experience

26

Promoting diversity in accounting

30

Giving back

32
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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

WORKING TOGETHER TO
IMPROVE PERFORMANCE

PRE-EMINENCE
• Conducted 595 Quality & Practice reviews across
Australia and New Zealand
• Reviewed our Professional Conduct Review practices
in Australia

Our Quality & Practice Review Programme drives continuous
improvement among our practitioner members.

• Launched our new Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand brand and guidelines

RELEVANCE
• Implemented a new post-amalgamation
organisational structure, and completed recruitment
for the new roles
• Launched a single Shared Services operations centre
in New Zealand, and upgraded information and
communication technology across the organisation
• Established the Affinity Member Benefits programme

REACH
• Continued to support diversity in the profession
through Indigenous Accountants Australia, Ngā
Kaitatau o Māori o Aotearoa and Pacific Island
Chartered Accountants Network
• Selected new charity partners for our workplace
giving programme Everybody Counts, in preparation
for its Australia and New Zealand launch in late 2015

THE QUALITY & PRACTICE REVIEW
PROGRAMME

IMPROVING COMPLIANCE

Each year, we review a number of member practices
to check whether they have the appropriate quality
controls in place to meet relevant professional,
technical and legislative requirements. The Quality
& Practice Review Programme is an integral part of
our professional compliance framework, helping us
maintain the pre-eminence of our brand.
This Programme helps us:
• ensure our members act in the public interest by
complying with relevant professional, technical and
legislative requirements
• protect and uphold the CA designation by assessing
whether services provided by our members meet
those requirements
• satisfy our regulatory and professional obligations
• understand where members need additional guidance
• keep members up-to-date with changes in
requirements.

If a review finds that a practice’s policies and
procedures don’t meet the relevant requirements, it is
asked to develop an improvement plan to address the
issues, with a follow-up review in 12 months.
We work closely with the practice, providing mentors,
tools and education, and close monitoring of the
improvement plan, to help it meet requirements at the
re-review. We also use what we learn from this process
to promote continuous improvement among other
member practices.
The 2015 reviews revealed that the majority of
reviewed practices had adequate quality controls in
place, with the number of re-reviews reducing from the
previous year.
The majority of re-reviews were a result of inadequate
quality control or insufficient documentation of audit
evidence, or a combination of both.

21%
10%

79%

17%

83%

87%

7%

90%

2014

NEW ZEALAND

Based on 351 reviews in Australia and 244 in New Zealand.

Member practice quality control

2015

AUSTRALIA

Satisfactory

22
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Re-review required in 12 months

Unsatisfactory (3%)

SERVE 2015

23

UPHOLDING PROFESSIONAL
CONDUCT STANDARDS

BREACHES and SANCTIONS
The majority of complaints that were upheld related
to breach of our Charter, By-laws, regulations, rules or
standards, or bankruptcy or insolvency. In many cases,
members were required to pay costs, while 15 had their
membership cancelled or suspended.

We are strengthening our standards of professional conduct to
help protect the pre-eminence of the CA designation.
STRENGTHENING THE PROCESS
From time-to-time, we review our processes to ensure
they represent best practice and to identify ways to
make them more effective. In 2014, our professional
conduct function in Australia was independently
reviewed.
Based on the review’s findings, we are strengthening
our Professional Conduct processes by:
• forming an independent Professional Conduct
Oversight Committee
• forming a Professional Conduct Committee,
responsible for assessing complaints and other
matters, deciding whether a matter should proceed
to the Tribunal for hearing, and entering into consent
agreements with members, where appropriate
• appointing an experienced independent lawyer to
advise the tribunals as required on legal issues.
We are updating our professional compliance
framework so these changes can go ahead. And
while there are no changes to New Zealand’s existing
professional processes, the changes in Australia will
bring greater alignment between the jurisdictions.
Members in New Zealand continue to be regulated
in accordance with the New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants Act 1996.

We’ll continue to use complaint and breach data to
improve our training and development and Quality
& Practice Review Programme. In doing so, we can
provide better support to our members, helping head
off potential issues before they occur.

7

6

56

Conduct bringing
discredit/inconsistent
with integrity

BREACHES

Adverse findings
(AUSTRALIA ONLY)

6

Failures to observe
proper standard/
negligence/
incompetence

COMPLAINTS

405

86

RECEIVED

RESOLVED
PRE-COMPLAINT

1

13

5

Insolvencies /
bankruptcies

Criminal
convictions

(NZ only)

3

328

29

OPENED/
INVESTIGATED

WITHDRAWN

Professional
misconduct
(NZ ONLY)

1

Entered into
an undertaking

1

(AUSTRALIA ONLY)

Condition or
restriction on
registration or licence

14

Breaches of Charter,
By-laws, regulations,
rules, standards

(AUSTRALIA ONLY)

143

37

CONCLUDED

DETERMINED

through investigative
process (AU) or by the
Professional Conduct
Committee (NZ)

by Professional Conduct
and Disciplinary
Tribunals

13

2

72

Severe reprimands /
reprimands / censures

15

Cancellations /
suspensions

SANCTIONS

8

Excluded /
struck off

2

3

2

No sanctions
except publicity

DETERMINED
ON APPEAL
1 In Australia, all complaints received against members are opened as a complaint.
2 Two complaints determined by the NZ Disciplinary Tribunal and one by the Australian Professional Conduct Tribunal are subject to appeal.
3 	One matter determined on appeal related to interim suspension costs and publicity, the other appeal was subsequently withdrawn.

1

Training and
development/
appointment of tutor

1

Fine

32
Costs

24

SERVE 2015

SERVE 2015

25

IMPROVING YOUR MEMBER
EXPERIENCE

Age Diversity

THE RIGHT TEAM
After a year of change, we have the right leadership, teams
and talent in place to take us confidently into the future.

32.5%
27%
20.2%

WORKPLACE DIVERSITY

15.3%

We believe that a diverse workforce is essential for
success. We’re committed to creating and maintaining
a workplace that reflects the diversity of our
membership, communities and markets.

We are making it faster and easier to deal with us, and giving you
more benefits through our corporate partners.

But diversity is about more than simply employing
people of different genders, ages and backgrounds.
It’s also about ensuring equity when it comes to
opportunity and reward. In the past year, we have
reviewed remuneration across our organisation, to
ensure pay equity for people performing the same
roles, regardless of age, ethnicity, gender or location.

<20

20-29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60-65

1.5%
65+

Age in years
WE HAVE FOUR GENERATIONS OF PEOPLE IN OUR
WORKFORCE, WITH EMPLOYEES RANGING FROM
22 TO 72 YEARS OF AGE.

Ethnic diversity

Gender Diversity at a leadership level

While ethnicity data is not currently collected in
Australia, it will be in the future as part of our new
payroll system.

Our Team

3.4%

0.2%

Our workforce in New Zealand is still predominantly of
European background, with other ethnicities making up
just 19% of our workforce. But we have had an active
strategy to hire a more diverse workforce – starting in
our Customer Service Centre – reflecting the diversity
of the population we deliver services to. Our Diversity
Strategy is under development and will be a focus for
the coming year.

53.8%
38.7%
30%

Board
TARGET 30%

25%

Strategic
Business
Leadership Leadership
Team
Team

Total at
leadership
level

Gender Diversity

471

22

PEOPLE

OFFICES around THE GLOBE

74%

188

26%

in

in

AUSTRALIA

NEW ZEALAND

WITH US FOR
5 YEARS OR
MORE

283

OF THE TOTAL WORKFORCE ACROSS
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND IS FEMALE

“Diversity of thought, markets and talent are heightened by increased global
mobility, technology and new ways to communicate. Everyone contributes and
everyone benefits. But to get this right, and really harness the power of diversity, our
leaders need to understand its potential, be flexible and above all, inclusive.”
Lee White FCA, CEO
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“Let’s do it better and different. We’re questioning, challenging, making sure that
what we do adds value and reduces organisation stress.”

“Everyone in the organisation is now on a single technology platform that is strong,
reliable and up to date – making it easier for our people, wherever they’re located, to
work together in serving our members.”

Jeana Abbott, Head of Human Resources

Leo Morta, Chief Information Officer

OUR NEW BRAND
Our new brand was launched in 2014 and is made up of:
• our new name
• a new visual identity and logo
• four brand values: Educate, Serve, Connect, Innovate.
In the coming year, we’ll continue to develop our brand,
to position and promote the designation to business
leaders, employers and the broader community.

OUR DIGITAL PRESENCE
For many, our website is their first contact with us. And
for our members, it is the primary portal to the services
we provide. To improve the member experience, a
considerable investment in our digital presence is
underway, to make it relevant, consistent and unified.

To help us understand what is working well, and what
we can improve, we seek regular feedback from our
people. This helps us to shape our internal processes
and communications to build a strong and unified
culture.
By developing our people and offering them attractive
career paths, we help ensure a strong organisation
into the future. As such, a focus for 2016 is to develop
a new learning and development framework, to foster
leadership skills and build expertise.

SHARED SERVICES

OUR IT TRANSFORMATION

Our operational processes are handled by a single
Shared Services group, based in Wellington. Shared
Services provides all member contacts, enrolments and
admissions, outbound calling, the Library Service and
internal transactional finance requirements.

Between November 2014 and January 2015, we made
improvements to the technologies our people use
every day.

Contact Centre
A trans-Tasman contact centre operating across
Australasian time zones, using a single CRM platform
and supporting processes.
Library Service

Our Contact Centre responds to:

In the coming year, the legacy sites will disappear, with
more content and searchability across the new site.
Members will see more activity in the digisphere, a more
prominent social media presence and more services,
including education, conferences and webinars online –
extending our reach to members globally.

1,800
CALLS

per week

In the past year, we ran a number of internal events
promoting a culture to support our strategy. These
events were well attended with around 60–70 people
attending each session.
We updated our induction programme, to support our
new people, welcoming them to the organisation. Every
new person meets the CEO – helping foster a strong
sense of belonging and purpose..

In addition, we separated our member-facing systems
from our corporate systems, to reduce risk and system
dependencies.

Membership applications

We introduced webcams and Skype for Business
to facilitate video conferencing, thereby reducing
reliance on traditional teleconferencing numbers, video
conferencing facilities and travel. The new operating
systems and software were installed on new servers
and equipment in our modern data centre.

Online applications for full and provisional membership
are now implemented though the new CRM system.

OUR CORPORATE PARTNERS

A new system to provide online library requests, books
and research requests for our membership.
Since the launch, the library has achieved a 31%
increase in services to members.

By removing reliance on parts of legacy systems and
implementing new applications, we’ve reduced the
time to process provisional member applications from
approximately four weeks to less than ten days.

A NEW CULTURE

We implemented a trans-Tasman IT service and
upgraded computers. We also introduced a single
finance package and an e-commerce platform,
migrated legacy systems to a new CRM solution and a
launched a new digital broadcast platform.

1,200

To provide more value to our members, we worked
with our corporate partners to deliver exclusive
membership benefits. We established the Affinity
Member Benefits programme, giving members access
to discounted services and exclusive offers from highcalibre trans-Tasman partners including Amex, Aon
and Thomson Reuters.

EMAILS

per week
Affinity Members Benefit Programme

“By combining our services, we now provide a more consistent and efficient service
to our members. We’ll continue to streamline our operations in the coming year,
by reducing manual processing, retiring legacy systems and simplifying annual
subscription processes.”
Kirsten Patterson, New Zealand Country Head
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MEMBER PROFILE

PROMOTING DIVERSITY IN
ACCOUNTING

We support greater representation of Indigenous Australians,
Māori and Pacific Islander people in our profession.
INDIGENOUS ACCOUNTANTS AUSTRALIA
We’re a proud supporter of Indigenous Accountants
Australia (IAA), a joint initiative with CPA Australia, that
aims to increase Indigenous representation across all
areas of the accounting profession.
During 2015, IAA appointed three Relationship
Managers and welcomed two new Advisory
Committee members: Dr Richard Ryan FCA, AO,
Professional Company Director and Jeremy Donovan
CEO of Generation One. They joined the existing
seven Indigenous and non-Indigenous Chartered
Accountants, CPAs, academics and finance
professionals who make up the current committee.

NGĀ KAITATAU O MĀORI O AOTEAROA
Ngā Kaitatau o Māori o Aotearoa (NKMoA) is an
Incorporated Society whose vision is to contribute to
the holistic wellbeing of Māori, helping Māori excel in
commerce and contribute to their successful economic
development.
In June 2015 we signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with NKMoA, to:

• actively encourage more Māori to choose accounting
as a career, and explore additional opportunities to
work together to develop a joint strategy.

PACIFIC ISLAND CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS NETWORK
Pacific Island Chartered Accountants Network (PICAN)
is a newly formed group that brings together Chartered
Accountants of Pacific Island descent for discussion and
support and to assist in their professional development.
It aims to raise awareness of issues facing Pacific
Islander accountants and increase their representation
in the profession, as well as forming links to current
and aspiring members who live and work in the Pacific
Islands.
The group has connected speakers with high schools
and universities and started developing a mentor
support programme for Chartered Accountant
students and members. The PICAN Chair, Rhys Faleafa,
also joined the Global Women working group to develop
a Māori and Pacific Islander internship programme.

• explore opportunities to establish a Māori
consultation committee to support and advise us on
issues relating to Māori business

30

New member Matthew Jones is already giving back to his profession and
community, through his support of Indigenous Accountants Australia.
Matthew came to accounting after five years working
as a Maritime Warfare Officer in the highly disciplined
Royal Australian Navy. Deciding it was time for a new
challenge, he looked at a number of career options —
returning to study to become a Chartered Accountant.
In February this year, we welcomed Matthew into
the membership, with CEO Lee White presenting his
certificate at the Queensland presentation ceremony.

176,000

28
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856

Combined CPA Australia
and Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand
members in Australia

Indigenous accountants
with a professional
designation

Indigenous accountants
studying towards a
professional designation

Māori members of
Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand

SERVE 2015

MATTHEW JONES CA

Based on a 2013 declaration
where members were asked to
nominate their ethnicity.

Matthew currently works as a senior accountant at
insolvency specialists PA Lucas and Co in Brisbane, work
he finds both interesting and challenging. Despite being
relatively new to the profession, Matthew has already
stepped up to help others follow in his path, through his
participation in Indigenous Accountants Australia.
As a Torres Strait Islander who grew up along
the Eastern seaboard, Matthew is one of just 26
accountants in Australia – out of a pool of 225,000
(0.01%) across all designations and specialisations –
known to be from an Indigenous background.
“I put my hand up and said I’m happy to be part of it,”
he said.

“I would support any initiative that provides
employment opportunities to Indigenous Australians.”
“There are a number of issues you need to address. High
school, literacy and numeracy to go into commerce, to
eliminate dropout rate during university, to improve the
presentation skills of graduates,” he says.
Through the IAA, Matthew has met other Indigenous
accountants and is liaising with students to ensure
they are aware of the opportunities in chartered
accountancy. As well as presenting at universities,
Matthew is personally involved in mentoring one
graduate in Melbourne.
Despite the challenges facing many Indigenous students,
Matthew is optimistic about what can be achieved.
“The low number in accounting is a reflection of what you
would see in law firms and other professions,” he says.
“That’s the way it is at the moment. The way forward
is for more Indigenous Australians to gain financial
skills and for more firms to give them the chance to be
successful.”
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MEMBER PROFILE

GIVING BACK

We help support the communities in which we operate, through
our workplace giving programme, Everybody Counts.
Over the past nine years, Everybody Counts has
raised more than $400,000 for our charity partners
in Australia, through payroll giving, fundraising,
volunteering and dollar matching (up to $15,000
annually) by the organisation.
We also provide use of rooms and facilities at our
Erskine Street premises to our charity partners free
of charge, helping them reduce the cost of events and
meetings.

PETER GOGSCH CA

Over the past year, we’ve been reviewing and
refreshing the programme, to make it available to our
people in New Zealand.

O’REGAN & PARTNERS - MT ISA, AUSTRALIA

EVERYBODY COUNTS
HAS DONATED

$400K

more than

$400,000
SINCE 2006

It’s a long way from the green fields of Ireland to the red dust of remote
northwest Queensland. Yet it’s here that Peter Gogsch, originally from Killarney
in Ireland’s south, has lived and worked since moving to Australia in 2002.
Peter completed his degree at the University of
Cork, before taking up a position in Longreach with
O’Regan & Partners, a chartered accountancy practice
that provides professional services to individuals,
businesses and local government in regional and
remote Queensland.
After completing the Chartered Accountants Program
in 2006, Peter moved to Mt Isa to manage a new office
for the practice. He’s now a partner at the firm, and has
made Mt Isa his permanent home, which he shares with
his partner and five-year old daughter.

"In late 2015, we'll be relaunching Everybody Counts with new charity partners in
Australia and New Zealand. We're looking forward everyone getting involved in
helping their favourite charities continue their valuable work."
Lee White FCA, CEO
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Peter says that one of the things he most enjoys about
Mt Isa is the work-life balance that comes with living in
a country town, and the closeness of its community.
“Having grown up in a smaller town in Ireland, I am a
country-type person, and it’s hard to imagine myself
living in an urban centre. For me, being part of the
community, and giving back to the community is
something I’m very passionate about. It gives me great
satisfaction to be able to do that.”

Peter is involved with one of the local Rotary clubs, and
is Treasurer for the Mt Isa Rotary Rodeo.
“The Mt Isa Rodeo is the biggest rodeo in the Southern
Hemisphere, and it’s a huge tourist attraction and a
huge boost to the local economy. Needless to say, it
is our largest community service project, which raises
significant funds for various community and sporting
groups in town, and supports the work of the town’s
two Rotary clubs.”
Peter is also a director with the Mt Isa Irish Association
and Irish Club, set up to promote Irish history and
culture, providing a connection to his former home.
Peter’s volunteer work reflects a broader ethos of
serving the community where he lives and works.
“I believe as a Chartered Accountant and Rotarian we
play a pivotal role in not only considering the impact of
our decisions on ourselves, but more importantly the
community at large.”
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connect
Being a Chartered Accountant
connects you to a 100,000+
knowledge network, giving
you access to a wealth of
experience and fresh ideas.

34

Enhancing provisional membership
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40

CONNECT 2015

CONNECT 2015

35

OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

PRE-EMINENCE
• Helped run the winning bid to bring the World
Congress for Accountants to Sydney in 2018
• Celebrated the achievements of 24 members on
national honours lists and initiated our higher level of
fellowship recognition for 2016

RELEVANCE
• Extended provisional memberships to Australia,
increasing the membership base and providing
more benefits to people enrolled in the Chartered
Accountants Program
• Opened the Erskine Street Member Lounge, helping
members connect

ENHANCING PROVISIONAL
MEMBERSHIP

We’ve brought around 20,000 provisional members into the
fold, increasing our relevance and reach.
In 2015, we introduced the provisional member
category for candidates enrolled in the Chartered
Accountants Program in Australia, aligning them to the
New Zealand model.

networking events, and other benefits and partner
offers. This helps provisional members feel supported
as a part of the Chartered Accountants family, right
from the earliest stages of their professional lives.

This change means that provisional members enjoy
most of the benefits of membership before achieving
the Chartered Accountant designation. They can
access professional development and social and

Provisional memberships also benefit our organisation
and members more broadly, through increased
member numbers, more opportunities for knowledge
sharing, and greater influence and reach.

Our offices and Members groups

REACH
• Opened new offices in Singapore, Hong Kong, Kuala
Lumpur and London
• Signed education agreements with Singapore and
Malaysia
• Signed an MOU with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales for greater
collaboration in Asia

London

Hong Kong
Kuala Lumpur
Singapore

Brisbane
Perth
Adelaide
Melbourne

Offices

Sydney
Canberra

Auckland
Hamilton
Wellington
Christchurch

Member groups

“Our provisional members are the future of our organisation. By creating closer ties
while they’re studying for their qualification, we can offer tomorrow’s Chartered
Accountants greater technical and professional support today.”
Simon Grant FCA, Head of Members
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CONNECTING OUR MEMBERS

SUPPORTING THE PROFESSION

We actively support events that are of interest to the accounting
profession, helping raise the profile and relevance of our brand.
With new overseas offices
and a member lounge in
Sydney, we’re connecting
members around the world.
NEW INTERNATIONAL OFFICES
Before amalgamation, we promised to enhance
the support we give to our members located
overseas.
We’ve delivered on that commitment with new
physical offices and permanent team members
in Hong Kong, Singapore and Kuala Lumpur, and
a London office which opened in August 2015.
Our focus is on building broader networks and
resources for members in overseas locations
and connecting them with other members
around the world.

OVERSEAS MEMBER GROUPS
In addition to our overseas offices, we work
closely with overseas member groups to
provide support to members in different regions
around the world. Member groups are made
up of volunteers who contribute their time to
represent and support members in their area.

ERSKINE STREET MEMBER LOUNGE
In June 2015, we opened a members’ lounge
at our Erskine Street premises, for members to
spend time between meetings or work quietly
while conducting business in the Sydney CBD.
The adjacent common areas can also be used
by members to catch up with colleagues.
TOP: Hong Kong office official opening, May 2015
MIDDLE: future[inc] Digital Currencies launch in Asia, February
2015 at Conrad Hotel, Hong Kong.
BOTTOM: Erskine Street Member Lounge
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THE WORLD CONGRESS OF
ACCOUNTANTS
In 2015, Sydney was announced as the venue for the
World Congress of Accountants (WCOA). Known as the
‘Olympics for accountants’, this event will see Sydney
host more than 5,000 delegates from around the globe
at the new International Convention Centre in 2018.
This comes as a result of a joint bid by Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s CEO, Lee
White, and CPA Australia, supported by Business
Events Sydney, the New South Wales government and
Australian representatives.
Sydney beat other major cities to win the right to host
the US$18 million event. This work is an example of
how we are raising the profiles of our organisation and
members on the world stage. Sydney last hosted the
event in 1972.

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION
We operate in a global business community. So as the
first cross-border professional accounting organisation,
we are reaching out to our global peers – working
together to achieve common goals.
In the past year, we signed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) to
collaborate closely in Asia.
We also signed education agreements with the
Singapore Accountancy Commission (SAC) for
mutual credit recognition between SAC’s Singapore
Qualification Program (Singapore QP) and our
Chartered Accountants Program. This agreement
relates to two professional-level modules on the
subjects of financial reporting and assurance, which
will allow Singapore QP and Chartered Accountants
Program candidates these specific exemptions from
each other’s qualifications.

TOP: President Fred Hutchings FCA signs the MOU with
Michael Lim SAC, March 2015
ABOVE: Indian Institute of Chartered Accountants Study Tour,
May 2015

In May, we hosted a delegation from Chartered
Accountants India, forging closer ties with accountants
in this region.
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MEMBER PROFILE

CELEBRATING MEMBER
ACHIEVEMENTS

We congratulate our members as they mark important
milestones in their careers.
LEADERSHIP IN GOVERNMENT AWARDS
Since 2009, the Leadership in Government Awards has
celebrated outstanding achievements by Australian
public service leaders. The awards recognise leaders
who make a valuable contribution to the prosperity
and stability of the nation, offering prize-winners a
sabbatical to invest in leadership development or to
bring best practice training to their workplace.
In 2014, the winners were:
• Matt Cahill, National Director, PM&C Regional
Network, Indigenous Group, Department of Prime
Minister and Cabinet
• Ian McPhee AO PSM FCA and former Auditor
General of the Australian National Audit Office.
In 2015, for the first time, public servants from both
Australia and New Zealand will be eligible to receive
the award. To find out more about the awards and
nomination processes, go to our website.

FELLOWSHIPS
Fellowship is an honour we award to members who
demonstrate outstanding achievement, outstanding
contribution and an exemplary professional history.
In April 2015, we introduced a new Fellowship
nomination process to Australia, with members
anonymously nominated by their peers, helping ensure
the designation remains at a high level of recognition
and relevance in the business community.
New Fellows are announced at our Annual General
Meeting and celebrated at regional events, when
certificates are presented.

NATIONAL HONOURS
We congratulate Australian and New Zealand
members who have received awards on official
national Honours Lists. The awards provide formal
recognition for the many individuals who have made
a significant contribution to our countries and local
communities.
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FELLOWSHIPS AWARDED

in NEW ZEALAND

219

HAYLEY PSALTIS CA
BURBERRY – LONDON, UK

FELLOWSHIPS AWARDED

in AUSTRALIA
Awarded by Institute of Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants under
their respective legacy arrangements.

MEMBER MILESTONES

50
YEARS

60
YEARS

70
YEARS

97

MEMBERS
32 in Australia
65 in New Zealand

83

MEMBERS
35 in Australia
48 in New Zealand

3

MEMBERS
1 in Australia
2 in New Zealand

When Hayley Psaltis moved to the UK, she expected she would be there for
around two years. Five years later, she’s enjoying a role with iconic fashion
brand Burberry, and loving the lifestyle and opportunities that London has
to offer.
“It’s a fantastic place to be. The opportunities you get
here, the size of the industry, the variety of roles and
companies here is fabulous.”
“You’re very close to everything. The world’s at your
doorstep and we do a lot of travel when we can. And
we’ve seen some amazing things since we’ve been
here.”

“The skills I learnt during the qualification are the
absolute essentials when it comes to business. It’s
given me an understanding of tax. It’s given me an
understanding of how to interpret a balance sheet and
P&L. Even if you’re not an accountant in your everyday
job, these sorts of things are essential to being able to
communicate with people across the business.”

Hayley says that, as a globally recognised qualification,
the Chartered Accountant designation was key to being
able to connect with employers and build her career
away from home.
“I know my CV has been looked on more favourably
when I’ve been applying for roles. It’s opened up the
international opportunities for myself and my husband
(who is also a Chartered Accountant) that we certainly
wouldn’t have had if we didn’t have the designation.”
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innovate
We have a responsibility to use our
expertise to shape a better future for
everyone.
As a trusted voice in the business
community, we will advocate for
change – to help achieve a more
prosperous future for us all.
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Leading the conversation

45

Advocating for better policy

48
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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

LEADING THE CONVERSATION

PRE-EMINENCE

By asking the hard questions today, we will shape our tomorrow.

• Provided thought leadership on important issues
affecting our future, including the Financial Services
Inquiry, Competition Inquiry, Tax Reform White Paper
and base erosion and profit shifting
• Made 137 submissions to government across a range
of policy areas

RELEVANCE

Over the past year, we have made a significant
contribution to policy discussion in Australia and New
Zealand, advancing our position as a trusted voice in
the public conversation.
We’ve done this by taking the lead in advancing the
conversation on digital disruption, diversity, cybersecurity, digital currencies, financial advice and tax
reform – and the major structural challenges faced by
our economies.

• Launched Acuity magazine in January 2015
• Launched future[inc] in New Zealand in May 2015

future[inc]

REACH

future[inc] is our thought leadership forum, providing
high quality, in-depth discussion and debate on key
business and policy issues. future[inc] publications fall
into three key categories:

• Issued eight future[inc] papers, which were
distributed to more than 22,000 key stakeholders,
including members and business and government
leaders

• Nation Building – contributing to macroeconomic
discussions and a plan for continued prosperity in
Australia and New Zealand.

• Future Framing – covering key business issues and
a wide spectrum of topics which have a significant
impact on our future.
• Future Directions – specific to a particular discipline,
these discussions seek to improve and lead future
developments.
We work closely with business, industry, governments,
regulators, politicians, academia, the community and
our members to conduct research, develop fresh
perspectives and promote discussion on these topics.
And while future[inc] publications are an important
output of this process, they’re only the start of what we
do. We also use the findings to drive public conversation,
through launches and events, online surveys and
discussions, media engagement and policy submissions.

BELOW: future[inc] Revolutionising Reporting: Why Care? The future
of Audit Reporting, New Zealand panel discussion, March 2015

• Launched the paper, The Accounting Profession’s
Engagement with Asia, as part of our Academic
Leadership programme

“Through our advocacy and thought leadership initiatives,
we’re creating fresh thinking on the issues that matter. “
Rob Ward FCA, Head of Leadership & Advocacy
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To date, we’ve initiated debate on a number of critical issues
affecting our future prosperity, including:

PROTECTING OUR
CYBER FUTURE

Social cohesion
DIGITAL DIVIDE
welfare

FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY

Climate change

Fair go

Risk management
CHANGING LANDSCAPE
Capital
cities

THE MEGATRENDS AFFECTING
AUSTRALIA IN COMING YEARS WILL
IMPOSE NEW AND GREATER RISKS
ON THE ECONOMY AND INDIVIDUALS

creative destruction
PREVENTION BETTER
THAN CURE
leadership

RISK-WISE AND A FAIR GO?
A PLAN FOR AUSTRALIA’S
CONTINUED PROSPERITY

Resources

EDUCATION IS NOT A PANACEA FOR DISADVANTAGE,
BUT IT IS JUST ABOUT THE NEXT BEST THING.

Rapid
pace of
change

EQUALITY

Equality of opportunity

Natural disasters

INNOVATION

ASIAN CENTURY

THE BEST RESPONSE TO RISK
IS NOT TO AVOID IT BUT
RATHER TO MANAGE IT

Non-negotiable

Policy reform

URBANISATION

DISRUPTION

SYSTEMIC
RISK

CHANGE IS
INEVITABLE

Strong political leadership

AGEING POPULATION
TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE WILL CREATE
WINNERS AND LOSERS IN BUSINESS

Wealth management

DEVELOPING A PLAN FOR
NEW ZEALAND’S PROSPERITY

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc
charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

Developing a plan for New
Zealand’s continued prosperity
August 2014

Is policymaking measuring up?
Rethinking how we measure the
success of a nation
September 2014

Digital CurrenCies:
Where to From here?

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

Protecting our cyber future: be
proactive before it’s too late
October 2014

ACADEMIC SERIES

Launched in July 2014, Acuity is a forum for fresh ideas
on matters of economics, business and finance.

We also engage more deeply with technical content
through our academic leadership series. These
publications are designed to provide fresh insights
and open dialogue on a range of evolving topics and
issues. The articles are aimed at both an academic and
practitioner audience and are peer reviewed.

Since its first issue, Acuity has featured articles with
prominent leaders from around the world, including
former President of Ireland, Mary Robinson; Mayor of
London, Boris Johnson; Netflix founder Reed Hastings;
Business Council of Australia President, Catherine
Livingstone FCA – even film director, Oliver Stone.

Be proactive before it’s too late

Community engagement

IS POLICY MAKING
MEASURING UP?
Rethinking how we measure the success of a nation

ACUITY MAGAZINE

Risk-Wise and a Fair Go – A
Plan for Australia’s Continued
Prosperity
December 2014

Through our use of social media, members play an
active role in the creation and curation of content,
providing a continuous feedback loop.
Over the coming year, we’ll be investing in creating
an enhanced digital experience for Acuity, building
on the iPad and Android tablet apps that are already
available.

This year’s paper, The Accounting Profession’s
Engagement with Asia, launched in July 2014,
discussed the opportunities and challenges for
Australia and New Zealand in developing closer ties
with the region in business, education and practice.
To find out more about our academic publications, go
to our website.

FAST FORWARD: LEADING IN A
BRAVE NEW WORLD OF DIVERSITY

DRAFT

charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc
charteredaccountantsanz.com/futureinc

Digital currencies:
where to from here?
February 2015

Future of Audit Reporting:
Revolutionising Reporting:
Why Care?
April 2015

17,745

Financial reporting: Noise,
Numbers and Cut-Through
June 2015

future [inc] papers distributed
future [inc] papers have been

Digital currencies

INNOVATE 2015

JUST
FOUR MONTHS AFTER
LAUNCH, ACUITY
WAS A

Business Magazine of the Year

MOST POPULAR
future [inc] TOPICS

DOWNLOADED
4,704 times
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Fast forward: Leading in a Brave
New World of Diversity
May/June 2015

FINALIST
912

AND RUNNER-UP
FOR THE ASSOCIATION OR MEMBER
ORGANISATION PUBLISHERS
AUSTRALIA EXCELLENCE
AWARDS 2014

D O W N L O A D S or V I E W S

Diversity

557

D O W N L O A D S or V I E W S
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MEMBER PROFILE

ADVOCATING FOR BETTER POLICY

We have an active and trusted voice when it comes to shaping public policy. The decisions made now will have
an impact on the future we enjoy. But good policy doesn’t just happen. Our advocacy and thought leadership
initiatives will help shape our future prosperity, through fresh ideas on the issues that matter.
Over the past year, we made 137 submissions to government on a range of policy areas. We also attended more
than 32 roundtable meetings with influential industry representatives – enabling us to advocate face-to-face for
better policy.
What we’ve achieved: our key advocacy activities for 2015

AUDIT AND INSOLVENCY
• NZ region legislative and regulatory
reform: advocated for changes

F INANCIAL ADVISORY
SERVICES
• Held key consultations with

SUPERANNUATION
• Made a submission recommending
improved governance and independent

to FMCA regulations which were

Government and regulators on PJC

directors on superannuation trustee

subsequently adopted.

inquiry, FoFA & TASA related reforms.

boards, which was largely supported by

• Australian region Insolvency Law

We also gave evidence at a number

government.

Reform: contributed to the Treasury

of key government hearings and

roundtable helping shape the

participated in select invitation-only

year on a range of ATO rulings and

Insolvency Reform Bill proposals.

financial services industry working

determinations.

• Audit reporting: promoted changes to
audit reporting, contributing to early

groups. This work will continue in 2016.
• Continued our financial literacy work

• Made submissions throughout the

Industry Advisory Group and other

through the government initiative,

invite-only consultation forums run by

annual reports.

MoneySmart week.

the ATO and Treasury on a range of
super issues and legislation.

• Made formal submissions and

AUSTRALIAN TAXATION
• OECD’s BEPS: co-sponsored the G20

initiated meetings with government

Tax Forum and participated as a

departments and advisers, including

member of the Australian Treasury’s

for the Financial Systems Inquiry,

BEPS Advisory Group.

Competition Policy Review, Australian

• Helped establish the international

Innovation System Inquiry, and

Global Accounting Alliance Tax

Agricultural Competitiveness.

Directors group.

• Contributed to the White Paper and

• Started research on a number of key

the Productivity Commission inquiry

topics expected to be relevant in the

into childcare.

tax reform debate.

NZ TAXATION

REPORTING

• Helped ensure a key project on debt

• Influenced legislative, regulatory and

remission (particularly intra-group) was

statutory reporting framework reform

prioritised by Inland Revenue (IR).

(NZ region). Developed and released

• Provided input to BEPS initiative

a special purpose financial reporting

on both domestic and international

framework supported by sector specific

(OECD) stage.

illustrated financial statements.

• Provided significant input to closely
held company review. Outcome of
review should result in improvements
to current law.

• Monitored and influenced the
deregulatory agenda in Australia region.
• Socialised thought-leadership

INSPIRE CA – BRISBANE, AUSTRALIA

• Was a member of the Superannuation

adoptions in some June 2015 year-end

BUSINESS ISSUES

BENJAMIN WALKER CA

• Contributed to SMSF Trustee Education
Programme being endorsed by ATO
under penalty regime.

 ROFESSIONAL ETHICS
P
AND LIABILITY CAPPING
• Gained the PSC’s approval of the new
liability capping schemes.
• Participated as active members of the
APESB’s task forces.

Benjamin Walker likes to do things a little differently. So when he left a big
four company to start his own accounting firm, he took a chance to create an
office where clients would really want to come.
“I’m a big believer in loving what you do. So here at
Inspire CA we’ve done something completely different:
we’ve put a café in the centre of our office.”

café was up and running, along with other options, like
a ticket to the launch party. The campaign raised just
under $5,000 to be used toward the fit-out of the café.

“In the café, we get our clients together, to get that
connection and community with them. It’s a big
icebreaker when clients and team members walk in the
door, it breaks down the preconceptions of what an
accountant really is.”

Ben says that having the Chartered Accountant
qualification behind him has helped give him the
confidence to trust his instincts and follow his own path.

Ben says that for a growing accounting firm, finding
the money for the fit-out of the café and office was a
challenge. But typically, he took an innovative approach
to finding the extra funds.

“I believe the Chartered Accountants Program has
helped me get to where I am, mostly because of the
process and program we go through, and the skills
we learn along the way. It’s a highly recognised and
highly respected qualification, both from a business
perspective and within the accounting industry itself.”

“We had to find a way to make it work. We had a
launch date and we didn’t want to have to put back the
opening night. That’s why I turned to crowd funding,”
says Ben.
Contributors to the crowd funding campaign received
dollar-for-dollar credit for food and coffee once the

publication to further the meaningful
disclosure debate.
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BOARD DIRECTORS
AND OFFICE BEARERS

IMAGE KEY FROM PREVIOUS PAGE:
1. Michael Forde FCA 2. Mary Waldron FCA 3. Fred Hutchings FCA (President) 4. Murray Jack FCA (Chair)
5. Darren Scammell FCA 6. Andrea Waters FCA 7. Doug McKay 8. Michael Blake FCA 9. Louise McCann
10. Neil Paviour-Smith FCA 11. Kevin Murphy FCA

BOARD DIRECTORS (MEMBER) continued
Ben Miels FCA BBus (Accountancy), LLB, FAICD

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA BCA

Group CEO Stratco Holdings Pty Ltd | Joined 1994

Managing Director, Forsyth Barr Ltd | Joined 1991

Ben has more than 23 years’ experience working in
public practice, with 11 years as a Partner, including
five as Managing Partner. In 2013, Ben moved to
his current role of Group CEO of a large private
international manufacturing and retail group.

Neil is a director of New Zealand Exchange Limited
(NZX), Councillor of Victoria University of Wellington,
and has extensive capital markets experience.

Director since: 1 January 2013 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ),
Retired 30 June 2015.

Director since: 1 July 2009 (NZICA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

CHAIR

PRESIDENT

Mary Waldron FCA BEcon and Social Studies (Hons)

Andrea Waters FCA BCom

Murray Jack FCA BCA

Fred Hutchings FCA BBS

Managing Partner – PWC Reputation, Regulation and
Risk | Joined 1997

Professional Non-Executive Director, AJW Advisory
Services | Joined 1987

Professional Director | Joined 1980

Professional Director | Joined 1978

Murray has over 30 years’ experience in management
consultancy, working in the United Kingdom, New
Zealand, Australia and throughout Asia.

Fred was a partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers
and preceding firms for 28 years, specialising in larger
corporate audit and advisory.

He has been an adviser to ministers and chief
executives around the world. He has particular
strengths in helping organisations to establish good
corporate governance and advising on business
transformation.

He holds a number of governance roles including
Chairman Seeka Kiwifruit Industries Ltd, Chairman
OAG Audit and Risk Committee, Chairman MFAT Audit
and Risk Committee and director of Speirs Group
Limited.

Mary became a member in 1997, advanced to
Fellowship in 2009, and was appointed a Director
in February 2013. She has more than 25 years’
experience in providing audit assurance and advisory
services to clients, including some of Australia’s largest
listed national and multinational public companies.

Andrea has 28 years’ experience as an auditor with
KPMG, 16 years as a partner – specialising in Financial
Services. She is a non-executive director of Citywide
Service Solutions Pty Ltd, CareSuper, The Lord
Mayor’s Charitable Foundation and AJW Advisory
Services Pty Ltd.

Murray is also Chair of the board of the Financial
Markets Authority and a director of The New Zealand
Initiative.
Director since: 1 July 2009 (NZICA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

Director since: January 2013 (President NZICA and
Vice President 15 December 2014),
President from 2015 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

Mary works closely with senior executives and directors
in the Australian market. Mary is also a Director of the
Macfarlane Burnet Institute for Medical Research &
Public Health and Opera Australia.
Director since: 1 January 2013 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

Director since: 1 January 2009 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

BOARD DIRECTORS (INDEPENDENT NON-MEMBER)
Louise McCann Masters Management,
FAICD, FAIM, FRSA

BOARD DIRECTORS (MEMBER)

52

Mike Blake FCA BCom

Michael Forde FCA BArts Dip Accounting

Auditor-General Tasmanian Audit Office |
Joined 1991

Senior Advisor, Aquasia Pty Ltd | Director, Karearea
Corporate Advisory | Joined 1997

Mike has more than 38 years’ experience in audit and
accounting professions, in both public and private
sectors. He worked for four years as a finance director
in the public health sector.

Michael has over 20 years’ experience in investment
banking, capital markets, professional services and
treasury.

Director since: 1 January 2011 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

Director since: 1 January 2012 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)

GOVERNANCE 2015

Doug McKay ONZM, BArts, AMP (Harvard)
Professional Director

Professional Non-Executive Director
Louise has a background in media, commercial market
research and marketing.
She currently holds non-executive directorships with
Macquarie Radio Network, Australian Physiotherapy
Association, Grant Thornton Australia Limited and
University of Notre Dame Australia, and is a Chairman
for the CEO Institute Australia.
Director since: 1 January 2015

Doug is an experienced Director based in New Zealand
and is currently Chair of Bank of New Zealand and
Eden Park trust, and Director of Genesis Energy,
Ryman Healthcare, and IAG New Zealand.

Director since: 1 July 2009 (NZICA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)
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RETIRED IN 2015 FINANCIAL YEAR
Mel Ashton FCA BCom

Graham Crombie FCA BCom MDENT CFinstD CPP

Professional Director | Joined 1984

Professional Director | Joined 1988

Mel specialised in Corporate Reconstruction and
Insolvency for the first 25 years of his career. During
the past 12 years, he has concentrated on roles as a
non-executive director, usually as Chairman of the
Board. He currently chairs a number of ASX Listed and
large private companies.

Graham was Chairman of the Board, a Fellow and a
Past President (2008) of NZICA.

Director since: January 2009 (ICAA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ).
Retired 31 December 2014.

Director since: 1 July 2009 (NZICA),
15 December 2014 (Chartered Accountants ANZ).
Retired 31 December 2014.

Peter Green FCA PhD FACS GAICD

David Robjent FCA BEcon

Professor and Head of School, Accountancy –
Queensland University of Technology | Joined 1997

Chief Executive Officer - Grey Advantage Consulting |
Joined 1985

Professor Peter Green became a member of the
Institute in 1997 and advanced to Fellowship in
2009. His portfolio is the Chartered Accountants ANZ
Education Board and he is a member of the Higher
Education Advisory Committee and the Chartered
Accountants Program Review Sub-committee. Peter
has over 25 years’ experience in the tertiary education
industry.

David has more than 30 years’ professional experience,
including 22 years’ with Ernst and Young as Partner,
leader of its government advisory group and as the
firm’s Federal Government account director.

Director since: 1 January 2009 (ICAA).
Retired 31 December 2014.

Director since: 1 January 2014.
Retired 31 December 2014.

He holds several Board appointments, including Chair
of Dunedin City Holdings, Associate Member of the
Commerce Commission and Deputy Commissioner of
the Southern District Health Board.

David is currently CEO of Grey Advantage Consulting
and a member of the Chartered Accountants ANZ
National Council.

Kevin Murphy FCA

Darren Scammell FCA BEcon

Managing Director / CEO, TSB Bank Ltd |
Joined 1989

Partner, KPMG Financial Services, Audit |
Joined 1989

Kevin has worked with TSB Bank for 35 years and has
enjoyed a diverse range of executive roles. In 1987, he
was promoted to Chief Accountant at TSB Bank, before
moving up to the Manager of Financial Services role a
few years on.

Darren has almost 30 years’ experience as an auditor
and accountant, specialising in the financial services
industry. Based in Melbourne, and having spent
over two years in Adelaide, Darren’s international
experience comes from spending five years in London
in the early 90s and from 2006 to 2008, all with KPMG.

Vice President since: January 2014 (NZICA: ex-Officio
Vice President), Vice President New Zealand from 1
January 2015 (Chartered Accountants ANZ)
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OUR GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA)
amalgamated with the New Zealand Institute of Chartered
Accountants (NZICA) on 31 December 2014 to become Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand, under Royal Charter.
We are a member-based organisation overseen by a Board,
Council and Strategic Leadership Team.
Before amalgamation, ICAA was a member of the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Council
that developed the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations 3rd Edition in 2014. We have now
adopted this framework to apply to our own governance.
The framework provides guidance for effective decision making in all areas of:
• strategic and operational planning
• risk management and compliance
• financial management and external reporting
• succession planning and culture.
The framework forms part of our management of corporate governance through systems of control and
accountability outlined in our Supplemental Royal Charter, By-laws, NZ Rules and Board Governance Manual,
including the Code of Conduct.
As an Australian Registered Body (ABN 50 084 642 571), operating in a co-regulatory environment, we are also
required to comply with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
other mandatory professional reporting requirements with respect to our financial reporting. We also comply with
appropriate elements of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and other relevant legislation in Australia and New Zealand.

VICE PRESIDENTS

By 2003, Kevin had taken on the role of Deputy Chief
Executive. In 2010, he was appointed Managing
Director / CEO.

HOW WE’RE GOVERNED

Director since: 1 October 2012 (ICAA). Retired: 14
December 2014
Vice President Australia since: 15 December 2014
(Chartered Accountants ANZ)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK OVERVIEW

AUDIT AND RISK
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

ASSURANCE,
OVERSIGHT
THROUGH
REPORTING

1

DELEGATION

3

DELEGATION

Lay solid foundations for
management and oversight

2

ASSURANCE,
OVERSIGHT
THROUGH
REPORTING

ACCOUNTABILITY

DELEGATION

OUR GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES

Ensure we are
structured to add value

Promote ethical and
responsible decision making

THE BOARD
INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE

– Independent Directors
– Non-Executive Directors

External Auditors
Internal Auditors
Independent legal or
professional advice

4

EDUCATION BOARD

NZ REGULATORY BOARD

5
NOMINATIONS AND
GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

COUNCIL

LOCAL
LEADERSHIP
TEAMS

Safeguard integrity in
corporate reporting

SEGMENT
ADVISORY
COMMITTEES

REGIONAL
COUNCILS

OVERSEAS
MEMBERSHIP
COMMITTEES

Make timely and
balanced disclosures

6
7

Respect the rights of
shareholders (members)

Recognise and
manage risk

MEMBERS

8
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Remunerate fairly
and responsibly
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1

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Lay solid foundations for
management and oversight

Eight Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand members
(includes the Chair and President)

Two non-members
(independent non-executive directors)

As advised to members in the Explanatory Memorandum, a governance review is scheduled to start in early 2016.
The purpose is to determine whether the corporate governance framework adopted on amalgamation will support
us in achieving our strategic initiatives.
The following information relates to the governance structure that was in place from 31 December 2014, unless
specifically stated otherwise.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
Our Board and its committees provide leadership to ensure we set and achieve our strategic objectives and
operate effectively and efficiently.
Under our By-laws, the Board has authority for:
•
•
•
•
•

maintaining and controlling Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s affairs
succession planning for the CEO and Strategic Leadership Team
promoting improvements in laws that affect the accounting profession
promulgating regulations, including those that prescribe rulings
providing guidance on standards of practice and professional conduct, including technical standards.

Terms for current directors

Year appointed
ICAA / NZICA Board

Year appointed
Chartered Accountants
ANZ Board

Term ends

Mike Blake FCA

2011

2014

2015

Michael Forde FCA

2012

2014

2017

Fred Hutchings FCA

2013

2015

2015

Murray Jack FCA

2009

2014

2016

Louise McCann

2015

2015

2017

Doug McKay

2009

2014

2016

Ben Miels FCA

2013

2014

2017

Neil Paviour-Smith FCA

2009

2014

2015

Mary Waldron FCA

2013

2014

2016

Andrea Waters FCA

2009

2014

2015

The Board governs us by:
•
•
•
•
•
•

setting strategic direction
approving and monitoring delivery of the strategic plan
monitoring legal and regulatory compliance with statutory obligations
approving risk management strategies and frameworks, and monitoring their effectiveness
monitoring organisational performance, financial performance and position
appointing and determining the duration, remuneration and other terms of appointment for the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and members of the Strategic Leadership Team.

The Board Charter, detailing its functions, responsibilities, powers and procedures, is set out in our Governance
Manual, available from our website.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board is made up of 10 directors, including two Independent non-executive directors who are not members of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand.
The two Vice Presidents are invited to attend Board meetings as observers and have speaking rights – but not
voting rights. However, their participation complements the role of the President, who is a Board member. It also
helps ensure that decisions of the Board, and the background to decisions, are communicated clearly to Council
and other member groups.

Director

Details of the current directors’ qualifications, skills and experience are included on page 52 of this report.
For details of directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings, see page 69.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Terms are usually for a calendar year. However, to ensure continuity during the transition from ICAA and NZICA to
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, directors were appointed on an initial term of 1–3 years. This
was endorsed by the Council at its meeting in February 2014. Council approved the appointment of Louise McCann
as a non-member director at its meeting on 8 December 2014.

Conflict of Interest disclosure is a standing item on each Board and Committee agenda. This is a matter for
ongoing consideration by all directors, and any director who has a material personal interest in a matter related to
our affairs must notify the other directors of that interest.

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board has at least eight formal meetings each year. One of these is a strategic planning meeting with the
Strategic Leadership Team. The CEO attends all Board meetings but the Board regularly holds Board-only sessions.

Directors disclose related-party transactions annually – see Note 21 Related Party Transactions on page 112 of the
Financial Statements) for a summary.

BOARD CHAIR
The Chair leads the Board, sets its tone and is responsible for the effective organisation and conduct of its affairs.
The Chair also conducts the annual evaluation of the CEO, through the Executive Remuneration Committee.
Current Chair: Murray Jack FCA, appointed in December 2014 for a term of three years.
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OFFICE BEARERS

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

One President and two Vice Presidents represent the Council at Board meetings. Each year, the Council appoints
the President and Vice Presidents for that calendar year from among its members.

In accordance with By-law 133A, the Board has delegated to the CEO (and through the CEO, to the Strategic
Leadership Team), responsibility for the day-to-day management of the organisation’s business and
implementation of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s strategy and policy initiatives.

The President is a member of both the Council and Board. The Vice Presidents are members of the Council and
attend Board meetings as observers.
Current office bearers:
•
•
•

President: Fred Hutchings FCA, appointed 1 January 2015
Vice President (Australia): Darren Scammell FCA, appointed 14 December 2014
Vice President (New Zealand): Kevin Murphy FCA, appointed 1 January 2015.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)
The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the management of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand in accordance with approved strategy, policies, a performance contract and delegated authority
framework.
The CEO’s responsibilities include:
•
•
•
•

advising the Board on strategic direction and progress
ensuring business activities align with strategic priorities
conducting Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s affairs within the law
keeping the Board informed of all major business proposals and developments through regular reports.

The CEO attends Board meetings and most Board Committee meetings, but is not a director and is not entitled
to vote. The Board advises and mentors the CEO on the appointment, terms and conditions and removal of
significant staff reporting directly to the CEO (that is, the Strategic Leadership Team).
Current CEO: Lee White FCA.

Details of Board Delegations are included in the Delegations Register, which is held by the Governance Manager
and reviewed annually by the Board.
Council
The Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council’s main roles are to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

represent members
act as a link between the Board and members, through input from Regional Councils
advise the Board on strategic direction, policy or other issues, in relation to their impact on members
appoint the Board as the legal decision-making body of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
and evaluate its performance
approve awards to members
appoint and evaluate the Nominations & Governance Committee.

The Council comprises 16 members (elected by members or appointed by Council to represent Australia, New
Zealand, Asia and Rest of World regions), including the President and two Vice Presidents. Council meets at least
twice a year (usually three times) at various locations as deemed appropriate by the Council.
Councillors generally hold office for a term of three years.
Nominations & Governance Committee
The Nominations & Governance Committee is appointed by Council to monitor and oversee Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand’s governance processes, including planning and reporting, nomination and successionplanning for Council and Board, and evaluation of the Board.
The Nominations & Governance Committee’s key functions are to:

SECRETARY
The Governance Manager acts as Secretary to the Board, Board Committees and Council. All directors have
access to the Governance Manager.

APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS
Board members are appointed by the Council, following recommendations from the Nominations & Governance
Committee.
Each year, the Committee reviews the Board’s composition, using a skills matrix to identify gaps. The results of the
review are considered in the context of the organisation’s operations and strategy and the need for diversity on
the Board. They are then incorporated into the selection process for new directors and for the re-appointment of
existing directors.
Each Director and Office Bearer is provided with a Letter of Appointment setting out the terms and conditions of
appointment, including the expected term, remuneration and the expectations of the role. This letter conforms with
ASXCGC’s recommendations.

BOARD INDUCTION AND EDUCATION
Our management and Board provide an induction programme for new directors, which includes:
•
•

discussions with the Senior Leadership Team
reading material to familiarise them with matters relating to the organisation’s business, strategy and any
current issues before the Board.

We also provide continuing education to the Board through internal and external presentations and strategic
sessions with the Strategic Leadership Team. These give directors a broad understanding of the organisation.

•
•
•
•
•

make recommendations to the Council regarding Board and Council appointments
develop skills matrices, selection criteria, succession plans, codes of conduct and continuing development for
the Board
recommend the remuneration of the Chair, President, Vice Presidents, Council and Board members to Council,
based on independent advice
facilitate the performance evaluation of the Board
monitor and evaluate governance processes between the Council, Board, management, and the Nominations
& Governance Committee.

The Committee is appointed by the Council and is made up of:
•
•
•
•
•

the President
Chair of the Board
both Vice Presidents
the immediate past President
two independent members.

The Committee Chair is elected from the independent members.
The Committee meets at least three times a year. The CEO may attend and speak at meetings of the Committee,
but is not entitled to vote.
Current Chair: Andrew Arkell FCA.
Audit & Risk Committee
The Audit & Risk Committee helps the Board fulfil its statutory and fiduciary duties in relation to financial reporting,
risk management systems, internal control systems, compliance and internal and external audit arrangements.
The Committee is appointed by the Board and comprises three directors. The Board confirms the membership of the
Committee and appoints the Chair annually. The Chair of the Board is not eligible to be the Chair of the Committee.
The Committee may engage external experts from time-to-time if it believes this would assist it in discharging its
responsibilities. The Committee may invite such persons to its meetings as it deems necessary.
The Committee meets at least three times a year, with the Chair providing a report to the Board after each
committee meeting.
Current Chair: Mike Blake FCA.
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Executive Remuneration Committee
The Executive Remuneration Committee helps the Board fulfil our duties relating to remuneration costs, CEO
performance and remuneration policy and strategy.
This includes demonstrating to our members and stakeholders that remuneration is set in a fair and reasonable
manner, in accordance with objective criteria. The Committee takes all necessary steps to fulfil this as approved by
the Board.
The Committee is appointed by the Board and comprises the Chair and two additional nominees. The Board
confirms the membership of the Committee and appoints the Chair annually.
The Chair of the Board is not eligible to be the Chair of the Committee. However, she or he may be a member of the
Committee, and if not a member, may attend meetings at any time at her or his discretion.
The Committee may engage external experts from time-to-time to assist it in discharging its responsibilities.
The Committee meets at least three times a year, with the Chair providing a report to the Board after each
committee meeting.

We are a responsible and committed employer under the Australian Workplace Gender Equality Act. A copy of the
most recent Gender Equality Indicators for our Australia-based employees can be viewed at wgea.gov.au/report/
public-reports
We are also committed to building a more culturally diverse workforce, specifically addressing the dramatic underrepresentation of Maori and Indigenous Australians within the profession.
See page 30 for more information on diversity within our workplace.

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s Board undertakes an annual performance review, facilitated
by the Nominations & Governance Committee.
In 2014, an independent external consultant was engaged to review and report on aspects of the Board’s
activities, to assist in a continuous improvement process to enhance the overall effectiveness of the Board. The
report was presented to the Nominations & Governance Committee, Board and the Council.

Current Chair: Michael Forde FCA.
New Zealand (NZ) Regulatory Board

PERFORMANCE OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The NZ Regulatory Board is the governing body responsible and accountable for ensuring New Zealand-based
regulatory functions are carried out.

Each year, the Strategic Leadership Team’s performance is reviewed by the CEO and Head of Human Resources,
and reported to the Executive Remuneration Committee and the Board. Each executive is assessed based on:

The Regulatory Board comprises three members, including the New Zealand Vice President. The Regulatory Board
meets approximately six to eight times a year in New Zealand and reports to the Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand Board.

•
•
•

achievement of their job specifications and goals
contribution towards specific business and strategic objectives
adherence to Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s organisational values.

Current Chair: Hugh Rennie QC
Education Board
As determined under the By-laws, the Education Board is established with delegated authority to:
•
•

Approve and oversee academic policies relating to the Graduate Diploma of Chartered Accounting.
Recommend changes to normal membership admission requirements outlined in the Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand Admission and Readmissions regulations.

Current Chair: Professor Fawzi Laswad FCA
Regional Councils and Overseas Member Committees
Regional Councils and Overseas Member Committees represent members in Australia and New Zealand, and
around the world. They provide a voice for members in their region, offer input on strategic policy and member
issues and act as a key conduit between members in the region, local member groups, and Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand’s governance and management.
The New Zealand Regional Council also fulfils the statutory role of the NZICA Council under the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants Act 1996.
Other committees
We also have a number of tribunals, Local Leadership Teams and segment advisory committees with specific
functions. These committees contribute to the achievement of strategic and business plans, by providing technical
expertise in specific areas or by representing member views and interests across particular sectors / locations.

2

Ensure we are
structured to add value

Committee Charters are available in the Governance Manual, available from our website.

DIVERSITY
We recognise that a diverse and inclusive workforce contributes to better outcomes for our staff and members.
As such, we have implemented a Diversity and EEO Policy that sets out the responsibilities of the Board, Strategic
Leadership Team and People & Culture in:
•
•
•
•
•
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setting diversity targets
developing and maintaining procedures and programmes
implementing and supporting programmes
measuring and reporting on progress against diversity targets
ensuring compliance with these policies.
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Directors are appointed by the Council, following recommendations from the Nominations & Governance
Committee.

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE
The Board’s composition is defined in the By-laws. When appointing directors, the Council seeks to achieve a
Board with a broad range and balance of relevant financial and commercial skills, experience and knowledge.
Appointments are also made with regard to skill, capability, geographical representation, gender, and cultural
diversity.
We currently have 10 non-executive directors. Of these, two are independent in that they are not members of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand.
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Director skills and experience

3

Promote ethical and responsible
decision making

Board

Audit
& Risk
Committee

Executive
Remuneration
Committee

Nominations
& Governance
Committee

10

3

3

3

Corporate governance

9

3

3

3

Strategy

9

3

2

3

Risk management

8

3

3

3

Strategy development and implementation

8

2

2

3

Stakeholder management

7

1

3

3

Mergers and acquisitions

6

2

2

3

International experience

5

1

3

1

Legal / regulatory

4

1

1

1

Marketing

4

1

2

0

Information technology

4

0

2

2

Communication

4

0

2

2

Audit committee

8

3

2

3

Senior management

7

1

3

2

ASX100 / large corporate

6

2

1

2

Public sector / not-for-profit

6

1

2

2

Board Chair

5

1

2

3

Large accounting firm

5

1

3

3

We deal with personal information in accordance with the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth) (Privacy Act) and the Australian
Privacy Principles in Australia and the Privacy Act 1993 in New Zealand. We also comply with the Spam Act
2003 (Cth) in Australia and the Unsolicited Electronic Messages Act 2007 in New Zealand, both of which impose
restrictions on sending commercial electronic messages.

SME

4

1

1

1

We have a detailed Privacy Policy, which is published on our website.

Small accounting firm / practitioner

2

0

0

1

We also have a Privacy Officer who responds to enquiries, complaints and requests for access to personal
information as they arise.

Skills matrix
Technical skills / experience
Finance & business acumen

Industry / role experience

INDEPENDENCE
Directors are expected to bring independent views and judgement to Board deliberations. Directors whose firms
undertake work for Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand do not participate in negotiations or
discussions about that work at Board meetings, and abstain from any decisions that relate to their organisations.
In the past financial year, no director of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand has received (or become
entitled to receive) a benefit from a contract made by Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand with:
•
•
•

a director
a firm of which the director is a member, or
any entity in which the director has a substantial financial interest, except as set out in Note 21, Related Party
Transactions in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 112.

This excludes any benefit included in the total amount of emoluments disclosed in Note 22, Director and Executive
Disclosures, in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 113
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CODE OF CONDUCT
We maintain a formal Code of Conduct that applies to our directors and members of the governance bodies.
The Code of Conduct sets out expectations that apply to each director and member of the governance bodies in
matters of professional ethics and behaviour. It includes guidelines for:
•
•
•
•
•
•

complying with laws, regulations and ethical standards
acting honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
using due care and diligence in fulfilling functions and exercising powers
being independent in judgement
upholding our primary responsibility to our members, while also having regard to all stakeholders
properly managing conflicts of interest.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
We are committed to ethical conduct. Our Whistleblower Policy sets out guidelines to provide an opportunity for
employees, members, candidates and other stakeholders to raise any concerns about unethical or illegal conduct
by employees, members, candidates or directors, or by contractors or consultants.

PRIVACY POLICY
We take privacy and data security seriously. We are committed to safeguarding the personal information of
individuals and fostering a corporate culture that values privacy.

WORK HEALTH & SAFETY
We are committed to providing a safe and healthy place to work. This means that we will:
•
•
•
•
•

meet and exceed all health and safety requirements
work in a way that keeps our people and others safe
stop any work that cannot be carried out safely
be open to new ways of being healthier and safer
not take shortcuts or put business objectives ahead of health and safety

•

work with our people to involve them in providing a safe and healthy workplace.

OTHER POLICIES
We have formal policies relating to our other legal, ethical and business obligations. Policies are supported by
procedures for compliance and monitoring effectiveness.
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4

The Audit & Risk Committee helps the Board fulfil its corporate governance responsibilities in regard to financial
reporting, audit, and risk management, including:
•
•
•
•

5

Safeguard integrity in
corporate reporting

protecting the integrity of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand’s financial reporting
complying with legal and regulatory obligations
ensuring the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management and internal control framework
overseeing the independence of external and internal auditors.

Make timely and
balanced disclosures

The Board has determined that Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure has limited relevance because we
don’t have shareholders with investments at risk. However, we inform our members of governance, financial and
other relevant matters as the need arises.

See Audit & Risk Committee on page 61 for more information about the Committee and its duties.

6

Before the Board approves financial statements for a financial period, it receives a declaration from the CEO and
CFO stating that, in their opinion:
•
•
•

the financial records of the entity have been properly maintained
the financial statements comply with appropriate accounting standards and interpretations and give a true
and fair view of the financial position and performance of the entity, and
this opinion was formed on the basis of sound risk management systems and internal controls, which operate
effectively.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Ernst and Young is our external auditor.
The external auditor’s performance is reviewed annually. It is the policy of the external auditor to provide an
annual declaration of independence to the Audit & Risk Committee – see page 118. The Audit & Risk Committee
undertakes a full review of the audit engagement before deciding to reappoint the existing audit firm or to seek
tenders on the open market.
While we are not subject to mandatory rotation of audit partners, we do apply this practice.
The Audit & Risk Committee meets with the external auditor as needed to review the adequacy of the existing
external audit arrangements, with particular emphasis on the effectiveness, performance and independence of
the audit. The Auditor meets with the Audit & Risk Committee without management present at least once a year.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES
Non-audit services provided by the external auditor, Ernst & Young, are set out in Note 17, Auditor’s Remuneration
in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 109.
The Audit & Risk Committee is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act. The nature and scope of each type of
non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

INTERNAL AUDITOR
Grant Thornton is our internal auditor. The internal auditor provides reports to the Audit & Risk Committee, in line
with the approved review programme.

AUDITOR ATTENDANCE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Respect the rights
of shareholders
(members)

At the Annual General Meeting, the Board presents the Annual Report, including audited financial statements
for the financial year, to members. The Annual Report is available online from our website. Hard copies are also
available for members and key stakeholders on request. A summary is reported in our member communications.
Our Royal Charter, By-Laws, New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Rules and New Zealand Institute
of Chartered Accountants Act, governance structure and details of our directors, councillors and Strategic
Leadership Team are outlined on our website at charteredaccountantsanz.com. The website also includes
information on our Annual General Meetings and voting and election processes for Council and Regional Councils,
and previous Annual Reports.
Our By-laws clearly set out meeting participation and gives members the option to send and receive
communications electronically.
Our key communication channels with members are:
•
•
•
•

In the Know e-newsletter
Acuity magazine
Our website: charteredaccountantsanz.com
Social media.

7

Recognise and
manage risk

The external auditor attends the Annual General Meeting to answer questions from members relating to the:
•
•
•

conduct of their audit, and preparation and content of their Independent Auditor’s Report
policies and controls we adopt in relation to the preparation of the financial statements
their independence in relation to conduct of the audit.

We are committed to building a strong risk awareness culture. We have a Risk Management Policy and framework
for managing risk, ensuring continuity of business through critical situations and disaster recovery.
Our risk management framework aligns with international standard ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management and
operates through:
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•
•
•
•
•

organisational commitment
planning
programmes
communication and consultation
continuous improvement.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for approving the overall risk management framework for Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, and monitoring and reviewing the performance of management in accordance with
that risk framework.
Responsibility for risk management is shared across all levels of our organisation.
At a management level, the Strategic Leadership Team identifies, assesses, monitors and manages strategic
and emerging risks using standard methodologies, while overseeing the management of operational risks and
compliance across the organisation.
Our independent internal and external auditors also review key risk areas. The Internal Audit Program is
closely aligned to the risk management framework and involves a rolling programme of reviews to confirm the
effectiveness of the controls in place. Findings of the internal audit are reported to the Audit & Risk Committee and
recommendations arising from the audits are monitored by the Committee.
The external auditors review and report to the Audit & Risk Committee on controls and risks related to the financial
statement audit.

Director attendance from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand was formally established on 1 January 2015. However, to
ensure a smooth transition to the new entity, its boards and committees existed before this date.
This report covers our transition period – from the old entity to the new entity (Chartered Accountants ANZ). As
such, we have provided Board and committee attendance details for committees that existed before the merger
was finalised.

Director

NZICA Board
meetings
Eligible*

8

Remunerate fairly
and responsibly

DIRECTORS
The By-laws state that remuneration of the directors, President and Vice Presidents shall be:
•
•
•
•

determined by the Council, based on a recommendation from the Nominations & Governance Committee
in line with market rates
within the parameters and principles approved by members
based on independent advice to the Nominations & Governance Committee.

See Nominations & Governance Committee on page 61 for more information about this Committee.

MANAGEMENT
The Executive Remuneration Committee:
•
•
•

helps the Board consider the remuneration and retention of the CEO and Strategic Leadership Team
agrees the remuneration framework, including any proposed incentive payment for the CEO
approves the annual remuneration budget.

The Committee appoints independent remuneration experts to advise them on specific remuneration issues.
The CEO is eligible for a bonus payment subject to the Board evaluating and approving their performance against
a range of indicators, including:
•
•

overall performance of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
achievement of key performance targets that reflect the breadth of our strategic and priority activities.

For more information about Board and SLT remuneration, see to Note 22(B), Compensation of Key Management
Personnel, in the Notes Financial Statements on page 113).
As Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand is not a listed entity, it does not provide an equity-based
remuneration scheme.
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Attended

ICAA Board
meetings
Eligible*

Attended

Chartered
Accountants ANZ
Board Designate
meetings
Eligible*

Chartered Accountants ANZ
Board meetings

Attended

Eligible*

Attended

Meetings

Ad-hoc

Meetings

Ad-hoc

Mel Ashton
ICAA President 2014.
Retired 31 Dec 2014

3

3

4

4

1

-

1

-

Mike Blake

3

2

4

4

5

2

4

1

-

-

4

3

1

-

0

-

3

2

4

4

5

2

4

2

3

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

Graham Crombie
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

3

3

2

Catherine Drayton
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

Michael Forde
Peter Green
Retired 31 Dec 2014

Fred Hutchings
Chartered Accountants
ANZ President 2015
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3-X

3-X

-

-

4-VP

4-VP

3

3

-

-

4

4

1-VP
4

2

1-VP
4

1

Murray Jack
Chartered Accountants
ANZ Board Designate Chair
2014 & 2015 Retired NZICA
Board 15 Dec 2014

*Eligible to attend meeting.

5

2

5

2

O: Observer VP: Vice President X: Ex-Officio
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS continued

ICAA
Audit & Risk
Eligible*
Attended

Director
Mel Ashton

Director

NZICA Board
meetings
Eligible*

Attended

Louise McCann

ICAA Board
meetings
Eligible*

-

Appointed 1 Jan 2015

Attended

Eligible*

-

-

Chartered Accountants ANZ
Board meetings

Attended

-

1

1

-

-

Mike Blake

2

2

6

6

Douglas McKay

-

-

6

6

ICAA Deputy President 2014,
Chartered Accountants ANZ Vice President AU 2015

2

2

-

-

Andrea Waters

2

2

6

6

ICAA President 2014. Retired 31 Dec 2014

Chartered
Accountants ANZ
Board Designate
meetings

Eligible*

Attended

Chartered Accountants
ANZ Audit & Risk
Eligible*
Attended

Darren Scammell

Meetings

Ad-hoc

Meetings

Ad-hoc

4

2

4

2

*Eligible to attend meeting. Note: Murray Jack attended two meetings of the Chartered Accountants ANZ Audit & Risk Committee
in his capacity as Chartered Accountants ANZ Board Chair.

Douglas McKay
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

2

Benjamin Miels

-

-

4

3

5

2

4

2

3

1

4

4

5

2

3

2

Chartered Accountants ANZ Nominations & Governance
Eligible*
Attended

Andrew Arkell
Chair, Independent, Non-director, appointed Oct 2014

Mel Ashton

Kevin Murphy
Chartered Accountants
ANZ Vice President NZ 2015
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

Director

Retired 31 Dec 2014
3-X

3-X

-

-

1-O

1-O

1-O
4-VP

2 VP

1-O
4-VP

2-VP

Tim Gullifer
2014 ICAA Past President, retired 31 Dec 2014

Liz Hickey
2014 NZICA Past President, retired 31 Dec 2014

Fred Hutchings

Allan Newman
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

Chartered Accountants ANZ President 2015

3

Murray Jack
Chartered Accountants ANZ Board Chair 2015

Susie Johnstone

Neil Paviour-Smith
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

3

-

-

4

4

5

2

5

1

Independent, Non-director, appointed Oct 2014

Kevin Murphy
Chartered Accountants ANZ Vice President NZ 2015

3

4

4

2

1

2

2

4

4

4

4

3

3

2

1

4

3

Darren Scammell

Hugh Rennie
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

3

ICAA Deputy President 2014,
Chartered Accountants ANZ Vice President AU 2015

3

*Eligible to attend meeting.

David Robjent

3

Retired 31 Dec 2014

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

Catherine Savage
Retired NZICA Board
15 Dec 2014

3

3

Darren Scammell
ICAA Deputy President
2014, Chartered
Accountants ANZ Vice
President AU 2015
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3

3

4-VP

4-VP

4-VP

2-VP

0
4-VP

0-VP

3

2

4

3

5

2

2

2

Andrea Waters

3

3

4

4

5

2

4

1
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Chartered Accountants ANZ Executive Remuneration
Eligible*

Attended

Michael Forde (Chair)

2

2

Murray Jack

2

2

Mary Waldron

2

2

*Eligible to attend meeting.
1

Mary Waldron

*Eligible to attend meeting.

Director

O: Observer VP: Vice President X: Ex-Officio

Director

New Zealand Regulatory Board Jan–June 2015
Eligible*

Attended

Douglas McKay

3

3

Kevin Murphy (Ex-officio)

3

2

Neil Paviour-Smith

3

2

Hugh Rennie (Chair)

3

2

*Eligible to attend meeting.
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS

ADVISORY COMMITTEES
AND BOARDS

1 July 2014 - 30 June 2015

Regional Councils

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council

AUSTRALIA
ACT

Adam Dierselhuis FCA (Chair - retired Dec 2014)

Stephen McDonnell FCA (Chair, retired Dec 2014)

Charles Kerr FCA

Mel Ashton FCA – 2014 President – retired 31 December 2014

Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA (Chair 2015)

Peter O’Regan FCA

Fred Hutchings FCA – 2014 Vice President NZ, 2015 President - appointed 1 January 2015

Michael Talevich FCA (Deputy Chair)

Troy Popham FCA

Amy Fox CA

Glenn Russell FCA

Adrian King CA (retired Dec 2014)

Chris Ryan CA

Kevin Murphy FCA – Vice President NZ

Cameron Lynch CA

John Thynne FCA (appointed 2015)

Suranie Alwis FCA (UK / RoW)

David Robjent FCA (appointed Jan 2015)

Richard Wanstall FCA

Darren Scammell FCA – Vice President AU

Cassandra Crowley CA (NZ) - appointed 1 January 2015
Peter Green FCA (Qld) – retired 31 December 2014
Hugh McKenzie FCA (Tas)
Jannine Mountford CA (NZ)

Andrew Sykes FCA
Adam Stennett CA (appointed Jan 2015)
Karen Toole FCA (retired Dec 2014)
Rahul Verma CA (appointed Jan 2015)
Lorraine Watt FCA

Mr Ben Coull FCA (Chair)
Mr David Nelan FCA (Deputy Chair)
Mr Paul Breen FCA
Ms Leah Eyre CA

NSW

Ms Lyndal Kimpton CA

Ms Heather Watson FCA (Chair 2015, Vice Chair, 2014)

Mr Daniel McCarthy FCA

Ms Jane Meade FCA (2015 Vice Chair)

Mr Hugh McKenzie FCA (Chair 2014)

David Robjent FCA (ACT)

Ms Karen Scott-Davie FCA (resigned 3 May 2015)

Ms Anita Robertson CA

Peter Rupp FCA (WA)

Mr Paul Gidley FCA

Baubre Murray FCA (NZ)
Peter O’Regan FCA (Qld) - appointed 1 January 2015

Dione Schick CA (Asia)
Jane Stanton FCA (NSW)
David Thompson FCA (Vic)
John van Ruth FCA (SA)
Stephen Walker FCA (NZ)

Mr Cameron Johnstone FCA (Chair 2014)
Mrs Wendy Patterson FCA
Miss Jane Stanton FCA (Chartered Accountants ANZ
Council representative)
Mr Ross Tilly FCA
Prof Peter Wells FCA (appointed Jan 2015)
Dr Philomena Leung CA (retired Dec 2014)

Ms Julia Langdon FCA (Chair)
Ms Taryn Rulton FCA (Deputy Chair)
Mr Paul Coram CA (resigned May 2014)
Mr Bill Edge FCA
Mr Timothy Holden FCA (appointed Oct 2014)
Mr R Duncan Honore-Morris FCA (appointed Jan 2015)
Mr Darryl Jess FCA (resigned Oct 2014)
Mr Charles McNeill FCA

Stephen Noble FCA (Chair)

Mr Paul Meissner FCA

John van Ruth FCA (Vice-Chair)

Mr Matthew Pringle FCA

Mark Coleman FCA (ex Officio) (retired Dec 2014)

Mr David Thompson FCA (Chair 2014)

Matthew King CA
John Medlin CA
Anna Nolan FCA (appointed Jun 2015)
Rachel Rees FCA (retired Dec 2014)
Nathan Reichstein CA (appointed Jul 2014)
Nigel Stevenson FCA
Stacey Quinn CA (appointed Jun 2015)
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VIC

SA / NT

Bruce Debenham FCA (appointed Oct 2014)

72

Tas

WA
Prof David Gilchrist FCA (Chair, retired Dec 2014)
Mr Peter Rupp FCA (Chair)
Mr Con Abbott FCA
Mr Matthew Allen FCA
Ms Amanda Cox FCA
Mr Doug Craig FCA
Ms Evelyn Hogg CA (appointed Jan 2015)

QLD

Mr Tinashe Kamangira CA

Kate Swindon FCA (Chair)

Mr Ron Louis FCA

Kaylene Gaffney FCA (Deputy Chair)

Prof Glennda Scully FCA
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Regional Councils

continued

NEW ZEALAND
Aaron Snodgrass CA

Michael Prasad CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Baubre Murray FCA

Michael Stowers CA

Bernard Mazur CA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Mike Atkinson CA

Brian McCulloch FCA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Murray Harrington FCA (commenced 9 Mar 2015)

Cassandra Crowley CA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Murray Taylor FACA (retired 7 July 2015)

Chris Pool FCA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Nives Botica-Redmayne FCA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Dale Ching CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Paul McElwee CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Don Mackenzie (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Phillippa Wilson CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Grant Ellis FCA

Richard Dey FCA

Grant Wilson FCA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Shelly Mitchell-Jenkins FCA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Kevin Murphy FCA - NZ Vice President

Susan Tremlett FCA (retired 31 Dec 2014)

Lucy Hickman CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Tim Loan FCA

Charities & Not-For-Profit Advisory Committee

Maria Cavallo CA

1 January–30 June 2015

Simon Croft FCA (appointed June 2015)

Bill Edge FCA (Chair)

Bruce Debenham FCA

Stuart Burns FCA
Kevin Clarke CA

Peter O’Regan FCA

Carolyn Cordery FCA

NZ REGIONAL & RURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Anita Furnell CA
David Gilchrist FCA
Kerry Hicks FCA
Darren Laarhoven CA
Daniel Papallo CA
Andrea Petersen FCA
Fran Raymond FCA
John Stubley CA
Mark Twomey CA
Australia Regional & Rural Advisory Committee

Matt Bolton CA (commenced 1 Jan 2015)

Damian Mulherin FCA

1 January -30 June 2015
Marilyn Davies FCA (Chair)
Trudi Ballantyne CA (appointed Feb 2015)
George Collier CA
Hamish McDonald CA
Richard Perry FCA
Charles Rau CA
Cros Spooner CA
Stephen Stafford-Bush FCA
Frazer Weir CA

1 January–30 June 2015
Jonathan Forrest FCA (Chair)
Peter Catterson FCA

Advisory Committees
Audit Advisory Committee

Mark Bain CA

Peter Shields FCA (Chair)

Joanne Doyle FCA

Peter Catterson FCA

Simon Graetz FCA

Lucio Di Giallonardo FCA

Peter Guise CA

Carla Jago FCA

Tim Holden FCA

Joanne Lonergan CA

Ron Louis FCA

Sarah Merridew

Stephen Lucy CA

FCA

Chartered Accountants ANZ Hong Kong
Michael Pang FCA (Chair)

Dr Wilson Tay FCA

Lie Ming Or FCA (Secretary)

Tan Yoon Huat CA

Michael Prasad CA

Samuel Cheng FCA (Treasurer)

Yap Ai Di CA

Liz Stanford FCA (ICAEW)

Susan Rix FCA

Portia Tang FCA (CPE Coordinator)

Oh Chin Zyit CA (Retired Nov 2014)

Ben Willington FCA

Michael Rondel FCA

Mason Wu FCA

Richard Liau FCA (Retired Nov 2014)

Brendan WorrallFCA

David Ross CA

Christine Tsang FCA

Greg Sheehan CA

Michael Chan CA

Amanda Watt CA

Ingrid Wong FCA

Graeme Pinfold FCA

Paul Meissner FCA

Geetesh Raniga CA

Baubre Murray FCA

Glennda Scully FCA

Chartered Accountants ANZ Education Board

Professor Fawzi Laswad FCA (Chair)

Lillian Lam CA

Alan Foo Yaw Rhen CA (Retired Nov 2014)
Daniel Wong Chan Wai CA (Appointed Nov 2014)
Shafiq Abdul Jabbar FCA (Appointed Nov 2014)
Ashley Chew CA (Appointed Nov 2014)

Associate Professor Julie Walker CA (Vice Chair)

Corporate Segment Advisory Committee

Rosemary Chung FCA

1 January–30 June 2015

Owen Gibson FCA

Carole Campbell FCA (Chair)

Dr Julie Harrison CA

Paul Barnicoat FCA

Professor Howard Davey FCA

Tony Candy CA

Professor Anne Lillis CA

Mark Conelly FCA

Gordon Mackenzie FCA

Murray Dickinson CA

John Murray FCA

Peter Dikranis CA

Frank Newman FCA

Simon Jones CA

Jenny Parker FCA (retired 30 Jun 2015)

Leanne Milligan FCA

Hayley Underwood CA

David Paynter CA

Professor Graeme Wines CA

Rob Perkins CA (FCA - ICAEW)

David Leow FCA

Jessica Dixon CA (Social Team Leader)

William Ooi FCA

Chartered Accountants ANZ Malaysia Committee

Julia Sloman FCA

Heng JiKeng FCA (Chair)

Lincoln Tong CA

Jayson Poulton CA
(Professional Development Team Leader)

Gladys Lim FCA (Secretary)

John van Ruth FCA

Stuart Lund FCA (Retired 19 May 2015)

Ng Sue Ean CA (Treasurer)

Kristy McIntyre (Retired 21 Sep 2014)

Public Practice Advisory Committee

1 January–30 June 2015
David Armstrong FCA (Chair)
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Overseas Membership Committees
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Chartered Accountants ANZ Singapore Committee
Don Northey FCA (Chair)
Samantha Chan (Secretary)
Andrew Er FCA (Treasurer)
Charles Macgregor FCA

Richard Abas FCA (Honorary Auditor)
CAANZ UK
Tim Kerr FCA (Chair)
Craig Jenner ACA (Treasurer)
Daniel Leckey CA

Martin Aitchison CA

Suranie Alwis FCA – Chartered Accountants ANZ

Dione Schick CA (Chartered Accountants ANZ
Asia Councillor)

Rest of World Councillor
Tracey Lee ACA (Vice Chair)

Matthew Waters CA

Vanessa Lennie CA

Leong SiewTheng FCA

Paul McKechnie CA (Vice Chair)
Chris Hamilton CA (Networking Team Leader)
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OVERSEAS JOINT COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES

LOCAL LEADERSHIP TEAMS (NZ)

International Federation of Accountants

1 January – 30 June 2015

Representative

Committee

Rachel Grimes FCA

Board

Richard Petty FCA

Board (Appointed Nov 2014)

Merran Kelsall FCA

Amy Lewis AT
(Appointed May 2015)

Wairarapa

Andrée Atkinson CA (Chair)

Fiona Cameron AT

International Audit and Assurance Standards Board (Retired Dec 2014)

Liz Maddox-Strong CA
(Retired May 2015)

David Bassett CA

Chris Sole FCA

Richard Mifsud FCA

International Audit and Assurance Standards Board (Retired Dec 2014)

Swathy Gudipoodi CA

Tim Youngberry CA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

James Dickson FCA

Compliance Advisory Panel

Matthew Kinraid CA
(Retired June 2015)

Anne Loveridge FCA

Auckland region
Auckland

Sue Eagle AT
David Osborne CA

Waikato

Tessa Southey ACA

Ray Hancox CA (Chair)

Felicity Tate CA

Stanley Koo CA

Aileen Davey CA

Kathrine Way CA

Nominating Committee

John Larner CA

Matt Laing CA

South Island Region

Robyn Erskine CA

Small and Medium Practices (Appointed Jan 2015)

Aimee Wevers CA

Rory Noorland CA

Small and Medium Practices (Retired Dec 2014)

Mark Winter CA

Sarah Riches CA

Marlborough / Nelson

Stuart Black FCA

Julian So CA

Nick Dalgety CA (Chair)

Alice Thame CA

Brett Allan ACA

Sarah Woolerton CA

Jonathon Deans CA

John Cahill FCA

Professional Accountants in Business Committee (Retired Dec 2014)

Prof. Peter Wolnizer FCA

International Accounting Education Standards Board (Retired Dec 2014)

Ken Warren FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (Retired Dec 2014)

Angela Ryan FCA

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (Appointed Jan 2015)

Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants

Northland
Stephen Ganley CA (Chair)
Karen Bell CA
Jeffrey Burson CA

Whanganui

John Dykzeul CA

Sharyn Pearce CA (Chair)

Angela Edwards CA

Brent Hood CA

Stephen Ganley CA

Matthew Power CA

Eddie Roberts CA

Glenn Spooner CA

Louise Miller CA
Hamish Tomlinson CA
John Van der Burg CA
Canterbury / Westland
Michael Rondel CA (Chair)
Murray Dickinson CA

Representative

Committee

Arturo Robiso CA

Bronwyn Wilson CA

Low Weng Keong FCA

Representative / Director

Rest of North Island (RONI) region

Manawatu

Murray Harrington FCA (Retired
March 2015)

Gill Cox FCA

Representative / Director

Hawkes Bay

David Moir CA (Chair)

Chris Kinraid CA

Bronwyn Dinniss CA

Anne Marett FCA

Jason Driscole FCA

Kelvin Mason CA

Brian Holmes CA

Susan O’Loughlin CA

Vicky Richter CA

Erina Stockman CA

Sharlene Bryant CA (Chair)
Suzie Clifford CA
Alastair Cromie CA
Gill Easton ACA
Lisa Hardie ACA

Otago

Bay of Plenty

Andrew Hamilton CA (Chair)

Mark Scott CA

Karen Brock CA (Chair)

Ian Calvert CA

Sarah Walker CA

Jason Lougher CA

Andrew Douglas CA

Quintan Moore ACA

Mike Hawken CA

Linda Nouwens CA

Lyn Hurring CA (Retired June 2015)

Joelene Ranby CA

Bob King ATF

Kiran Watkins CA

Rosalind Whiting CA

Robyn Tomlinson CA (Chair)
Catherine Chrisp CA
Joanna Frain CA
Michelle Hall CA
Philip McLeod CA
Cathy Moorcroft CA
Barry Vryenhoek ACA
Taranaki
Wesley Gillanders CA (Chair)

GOVERNANCE 2015

Billie Stanley CA

Craig Riddiford CA

Gisborne / East Coast
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Thomas Westgarth CA (Chair)

Paul Wollaston CA
Wellington Region
Wellington
Jane Mitson CA (Chair)
Hamish Bowen CA

Servaas Botha CA

Matthew Keats CA (Retired June
2015)

Louise Corlett CA

Mel Main CA

Marilyn Davies FCA

Philip Major CA

Paul Duynhoven CA

Judith Pinny CA

Denise Karageorge CA

Adrian Sparrow ACA

Southland
Brad Phillips CA (Chair)
Mary-Anne Bricknell ACA
Nigel James CA
Sheree Marrah CA
Larry Mitchell CA
John Schol CA
Sarah Valli CA
Lynley Woodward CA
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financial report
for the year ended 30 June 2015
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
Principal activities
In 2014–15, the principal activities of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Entity) were the provision
of education and training to members, provisional members and the broader business community, the influencing
of business policy locally and internationally, provision of member services and the execution of the transformation
plan to finalise the amalgamation of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA) and the New
Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA).
During the financial year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia changed its name to Chartered
Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Chartered Accountants ANZ).

Financial results and review of operations
The members of ICAA and NZICA voted in favour of creating one organisation, Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand, in November 2013. The transition of operations commenced thereafter whilst the legal
amalgamation was sought and later formalised on 31 December 2014. The financial statements report Australian
activities only for the period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014, with combined Australian and New Zealand
activities for the period 1 January 2015 to 30 June 2015.
The amalgamation reserve, recognised from 1 January 2015 represents the fair value of the net assets transferred
from NZICA. Whilst overall revenue increased by $13.7 million, primarily as a result of the amalgamation, the lower
membership subscription fee ($150 per full member fee) reduced revenues by $9.2 million for the year, with the
introduction of provisional membership subscriptions in Australia increasing revenue by $3.6 million.
During the year, cost synergies of $14.1 million were realised as a result of reduced staffing levels, and non-staff
related synergies delivered totalled $6.4 million for the year. Transition costs of $2.0 million were incurred and
investments in new initiatives embarked upon totalled $2.1 million, including an additional investment in Acuity
magazine of $0.7 million.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Entity generated a surplus of $6.2 million for the year (2014: $0.5 million surplus). Total revenue and other
income rose by 14.1% to $110.8 million, while expenditure increased by 8.3% to $104.6 million.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
The increase in revenue of $13.7 million over the 2014 result flowed from:
• an increase in membership revenue of $5.9 million due to an increase in member numbers of 31,325 (49%)
primarily as a result of the amalgamation with NZICA from 1 January 2015, coupled with the introduction of
provisional membership (20,102 provisional members) with effect from 1 July 2014, offset by a decrease in the
full membership subscription fee of $150 per member in Australia and New Zealand (19%)
• an increase in education revenue of $7.7 million, mainly in training and development and the Chartered
Accountants Program of which $7.4 million related to New Zealand activities.
The increase in expenditure of $8.0 million over the 2014 result was due to:
• information technology expenses increased by 18.2% ($1.7 million), primarily due to cost associated with
supporting the New Zealand based offices
• other expenses increased by 43.9% (or $1.3 million), also primarily as a result of expenses incurred in servicing
operations in New Zealand
• service expenses rose 19.2% ($3.9 million) due to the additional costs of delivering services to a higher number of
members
• administration expenses decreased 0.3% (or $0.2 million), due to synergy savings realised offsetting the
additional costs incurred in New Zealand
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• the Entity embarked on a number of new initiatives during the year, with investment in these initiatives
budgeted to continue into the next financial year. The initiatives include:
- investment in new education and training programs of $0.4 million ($1.7 million budgeted in the 2015-16
financial year)
- investment in developing and operating international offices in the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong
and Malaysia, of $0.5 million ($1.0 million budgeted in the 2015-16 financial year)
- investment in the development of the future[inc] initiative of $0.5 million ($0.9 million budgeted in the 2015-16
financial year).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capital expenditure totalled $5.5 million, which was primarily due to the acquisition of plant and equipment upon
amalgamation with NZICA ($4.1 million) and $1.4 million of software.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Net assets increased by $11.8 million, or 18%, as a result of the amalgamation with NZICA ($6.1 million
amalgamation reserve), and the surplus generated in the year to 30 June 2015 ($6.2 million), offset by the foreign
currency translation reserve (–$0.5 million).

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents increased from $46.3 million to $50.7 million, placing the Entity in a strong financial
position to fund operations, projects and investments planned in the next financial year.
Trade receivables at balance date increased by $2.0 million due to higher sales following the amalgamation,
coupled with slower payments received from debtors. Debts are expected to be recovered in the normal course of
business, with adequate provision for any debts considered doubtful.
Intangible assets increased $3.3 million primarily due to assets taken over from NZICA and investment in new
systems and software.

LIABILITIES
Fees in advance includes $36.1 million relating to subscriptions received from members as at 30 June 2015, for
services that will be delivered in the financial year ending 30 June 2016. The amounts received are not expected to
be refunded and will be recognised as revenue in the financial year ending 30 June 2016.
Provisions decreased by $2.4 million mainly due to lower employee entitlement provisions at balance date. This
liability included a redundancy provision of $0.5 million. This is $2.4 million lower than last year, as redundancy
payments were made during the period.

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY
At balance date, the Entity had cash of $50.7 million. Receipts from the annual financial year 2016 membership
subscriptions received in advance totalled $36.1 million. Payments for GST amounted to $5.6 million predominantly
due to the GST for annual 2015 membership subscriptions paid in July 2015 and 2016 annual membership
subscriptions paid in June 2015.

AMALGAMATION RESERVE
At balance date, the Entity had an amalgamation reserve of $6.1 million, which is the fair value of net assets
transferred from NZICA on amalgamation date.

MEMBERS’ FUNDS
The financial objective of the Entity is to ensure that it has sufficient reserves to provide the necessary services to
its members and to meet its obligations as set out in the Entity’s strategic and business plans. The Entity has set
a target ratio of members’ funds to operating expenditure of 45% to 55%. This ratio is currently being exceeded.
Consistent with its Charter, the Entity does not distribute reserves to its members. In the event of the Entity being
wound-up or dissolved, the amount that remains after such dissolution and the satisfaction of all debts and
liabilities, shall be transferred to another entity which has similar objectives and which has rules prohibiting the
distribution of assets and income to its members.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Total revenue and other income
Total expenses
Surplus/(deficit)

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

110,831

97,129

96,097

91,639

91,408

(104,637)

(96,631)

(98,405)

(88,801)

(86,349)

6,194

498

(2,308)

2,838

5,059

Notes

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

108,146

94,595

2,685

2,534

110,831

97,129

(24,020)

(20,156)

(7,383)

(6,115)

Administration expenses

(57,860)

(58,023)

Information technology expenses

(10,954)

(9,266)

(4,420)

(3,071)

(104,637)

(96,631)

6,194

498

-

-

6,194

498

14 & 25

6,078

-

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

14

(464)

-

Fair value increment of freehold property

14

-

9,010

5,614

9,010

11,808

9,508

Revenue
Other income

Current assets

62,713

52,737

51,910

46,709

37,659

Non-current assets

71,722

64,750

58,424

61,834

61,184

(55,530)

(50,342)

(53,021)

(48,443)

(43,541)

Non-current liabilities

(2,608)

(2,656)

(2,332)

(1,621)

(1,511)

Total net assets

76,297

64,489

54,981

58,479

53,791

Current liabilities

Amalgamation reserve
Foreign currency translation
reserve

6,078

-

-

-

-

4(A)

Service expenses
Occupancy expenses

Other expenses
Total expenses

(464)

-

-

-

-

16,397

16,397

7,387

8,577

6,727

Accumulated surpluses

54,286

48,092

47,594

49,902

47,064

Total members’ funds

76,297

64,489

54,981

58,479

53,791

Revaluation reserves

Total revenue and other income

Surplus before tax
Income tax expense

5

Surplus after tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to surplus or deficit
Amalgamation of Business

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 30 June 2015

For the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Amalgamation
reserve

Foreign currency
translation reserve

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

At 1 July 2014

-

-

16,397

48,092

64,489

Surplus after tax for the year

-

-

-

6,194

6,194

Other comprehensive
income

6,078

(464)

-

-

5,614

Total comprehensive income

6,078

(464)

-

6,194

11,808

At 30 June 2015

6,078

(464)

16,397

54,286

76,297

At 1 July 2013

-

-

7,387

47,594

54,981

Surplus after tax for the year

-

-

-

498

498

1,610

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

9,010

-

9,010

Total comprehensive income

-

-

9,010

498

9,508

At 30 June 2014

-

-

16,397

48,092

64,489

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

6

50,734

46,262

Trade and other receivables

7

11,979

6,475

62,713

52,737

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Receivables

7

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

8

65,115

63,388

Intangible assets

9

4,690

1,362

Capital work-in-progress

10

Total non-current assets
Total assets

1,917

-

71,722

64,750

134,435

117,487

Revaluation Accumulated
reserve
surpluses

Total

Current liabilities
Fees in advance

11

44,605

36,064

Trade and other payables

12

6,352

7,434

Provisions

13

4,573

6,844

55,530

50,342

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

12

Provisions

13

1,717
891

1,046

2,608

2,656

Total liabilities

58,138

52,998

Net assets

76,297

64,489

Total non-current liabilities

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Members’ funds
Amalgamation reserve

14

Foreign currency translation reserve

14

(464)

-

Revaluation reserve

14

16,397

16,397

Accumulated surpluses

14

54,286

48,092

76,297

64,489

Total members’ funds

6,078

-

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from members’ subscriptions
Receipts from the Entity’s activities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net refund/(payment) for GST
Net cash flows from operating activities

6

62,132

47,652

54,110

45,726

(113,027)

(92,677)

(5,619)

525

(2,404)

1,226

1. Corporate information
The financial statements of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Entity) for the year ended 30 June
2015 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of directors on 15 October 2015.
The Entity is an Australian registered body corporate that is governed by its Supplemental Royal Charter and is
domiciled in Australia. Members of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand are not liable for the debts
and liabilities of the Entity.
The registered office of the Entity is:
33 Erskine Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
The Entity is a not-for-profit entity and its principal activities during the year were:
• delivering pre and post admission education and services
• setting and maintaining high standards as they apply to members, to enhance their professional standing with

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

2

1

Payment for property, plant and equipment

(1,398)

(543)

Payments for intangibles

(3,464)

(611)

(1,917)

-

1,555

1,351

12,199

-

6,977

198

Payments for capital work-in-progress assets
Interest received
Transfer of cash on amalgamation

25

Net cash flows from investing activities

the public and the business community
• continuing development of government relations and advocacy programmes in pursuit of legislative and
regulatory objectives
• continuing development of a programme to enhance the market and personal value of the Chartered
Accountant designation.
In October 2013, the members of both the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA) voted in favour of creating one new institute. On 31 December 2014
NZICA transferred its assets and liabilities to the Entity as part of the amalgamation. Refer to Note 25 for further
information on the amalgamation.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

Net cash flows from financing activities

-

-

This general purpose Financial Report was prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AIFRS)
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
This Financial Report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for freehold property, which has
been measured at fair value (refer Note 2(E)).

Effects of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial
year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

(101)

-

4,573

1,424

46,262

44,838

The Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars (AUD) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($’000) unless otherwise stated.

(B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Financial Report complies with Australian Accounting Standards.

6

50,734

46,262

The Entity’s principal objective is not the generation of profit. Consequently, where appropriate, the Entity has
elected to apply options and exemptions within accounting standards that are applicable to not-for-profit entities.
As a result this Financial Report does not comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Changes in accounting policies and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:
• The Entity has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
Interpretations as of 1 July 2014:
• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements establishes a new control model that applies to all entities. The
new control model broadens the situation where an entity is considered to be controlled by another entity and
includes new guidance on how to apply the model. The Entity has applied AASB 10 retrospectively and has
determined that the Entity controls Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Singapore) Private
Limited, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Hong Kong) Limited and the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants. However during the course of 2014-15 and at 30 June 2015 the financial
transactions and balances of these Entities were not significant.
• AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities introduces new disclosures about the judgments made by
management to determine whether control exists, and summarises information about subsidiaries. The Entity
has applied AASB 12 retrospectively.

Freehold property: 

Building

50 years

Building plant

25 years

Furniture

10 years

Office equipment

5 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

10 years

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

Lease term

Motor vehicles

3 years

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
Certain Australian Accounting Standards and AASB interpretations have recently been issued or amended but
were not yet effective and have not been adopted for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015. The
standards relevant to the Entity are the following:

The assets’ residual values, useful lives, depreciation and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end. There were no changes to the residual values, useful lives or depreciation
and amortisation methods in the current or previous financial year.

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets.

(i) Impairment

The requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement for financial assets
compared with the requirements of AASB 139. AASB 9 will become mandatory for the Entity’s 30 June 2019
financial statements, and is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.
• AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It will replace existing revenue recognition guidance
including AASB 118 Revenue. AASB 15 will become mandatory for 30 June 2018 financial statements and the
Entity is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of this new
standard.
There are no new interpretations which are expected to have any significant impact on the Entity’s financial
statements.

(C) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position, which comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and
short-term deposits, are stated at their nominal amount.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above and include deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash in hand.

(D) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for impairment.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. An impairment provision is recognised when
there is objective evidence that the Entity will not be able to collect the receivable. Individual debts that are known
to be uncollectible are written off when identified.

(E) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Freehold property is measured at fair value, less accumulated depreciation on buildings and building plant, less
any impairment losses recognised after the date of revaluation.
The fair value of freehold property is a directors’ valuation and has taken into account an impairment test, prior
year’s McGees Property (NSW) Pty Ltd (McGees) valuation and updated market conditions. An external valuer is
appointed to perform an independent valuation every three years. The valuation is categorised as Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 8 for further information.
All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, other than land, is calculated
on a straight-line basis at rates which take account of the remaining useful life of the relevant assets and their
estimated residual values. The cost of fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises is amortised over their estimated
useful lives or the remainder of the lease period, dependent on whichever period is shorter.
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The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised as expenditure in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. Freehold property is measured at revalued
amounts, and therefore impairment losses on freehold property are treated as a revaluation decrement.
(ii) Revaluations
Following initial recognition at cost, freehold property is carried at a revalued amount, which is the fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation on buildings and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are carried out with sufficient regularity so as to ensure that the carrying amount
represents fair value. Currently this is once every three years..
Any revaluation increment is credited to the property revaluation reserve included in the members’ funds section
of the Statement of Financial Position, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrement for the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss.
Any revaluation decrement is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets a previous revaluation
increment for the same asset, in which case the decrement is debited directly to the property revaluation reserve
to the extent of the credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve for that asset.
(iii) Disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment is written off when no further future economic benefits are expected
from its use or it is disposed of.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income in the year the asset is disposed of.

(F) INTANGIBLES
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over their useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with
the function of the intangible asset.
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(J) REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION
Intangibles are amortised as follows:
Computer software

3 years

Revenues and expenses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that their respective economic benefits will
flow to, or be lost, or be consumed by the Entity and that the revenues and expenses can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenues or expenses are recognised.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
disposed of.

(i) Member fees

The Entity has no intangible assets assessed having an indefinite life.

Fee receipts relating to periods beyond the current financial year are shown, excluding any applicable taxes, in the
Statement of Financial Position as Fees in advance, under the heading of Current liabilities.

(G) FEES IN ADVANCE
Fees in advance are carried at original invoice amount in respect of goods and services to be provided subsequent
to balance date. Fees in advance includes membership fees, Chartered Accountants Program enrolment fees, and
training and development course fees.
The Fees in advance balance primarily relates to payments received from members and provisional members as at
30 June 2015, for services that will be delivered in the financial year ending 30 June 2016. The amounts received
are not expected to be refunded and will be recognised as revenue in the financial year ending 30 June 2016.

(H) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Entity
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Entity becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally settled on a 30-day term.

(I) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(i) Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave expected to be settled within
12 months of the reporting date, are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the
reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Any annual
leave expected to be settled beyond 12 months of the reporting date is measured at the present value of expected
future payments.
(ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date
using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the reporting date on Australian Corporate Bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The Entity’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30 June. Fees are payable annually in advance. Only those
member fee receipts that are attributable to the current financial year are recognised as revenue.

(ii) Other revenue-generating activities
The Entity undertakes certain activities which are accounted for on a work-in-progress basis, including Chartered
Accountants Program modules, training and development courses, quality reviews, Acuity magazines, conferences
and student activities. The Entity’s policy of accrual accounting with respect to the recognition of revenues and
expenses on such activities is as follows:
• For activities which are completed on or before balance date, any surplus or deficit is incorporated into the
year’s results.
• For activities which take place wholly after the end of the financial year, any revenue received and expense
incurred on such activities prior to balance date is deferred and carried forward in the Statement of Financial
Position within fees in advance and prepayments respectively.
• For activities to be delivered after balance date, a proportion of the final projected net surplus is recognised in
the financial year on the percentage of completion basis.
Revenue in regard to certain activities is deferred in cases where it is anticipated that refunds will be made in
regard to discontinuation by attendees. The deferred amount is carried forward in the Statement of Financial
Position within Fees in advance.
For activities to be completed after balance date, the methods adopted to determine the percentage of
completion basis are as follows:
• For Chartered Accountants Program modules, the percentage of completion is apportioned according to the
time span between the commencement of the module and the completion of the examination.
• For other courses and activities that are delivered in a series of events, the percentage of completion is
apportioned according to the number of events delivered at balance date compared to the total number of
events in the series.
Rental income from leased premises is recognised on an emerging basis.
(iii) Sale of goods
The Entity recognises revenue from the sale of goods when physical control of the goods passes to the purchaser
pursuant to an enforceable sales contract and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are considered passed to the buyer at the time of
delivery of the goods to the customer.

(iii) Termination benefits

(iv) Member benefits revenue

Liabilities for termination benefits are recognised in the provision for employee benefits when the Entity is
demonstrably committed to terminate the employee or where an offer is made in order to encourage voluntary
redundancy.

The Entity receives revenue in the form of either a fixed monthly fee or in the form of trailing or upfront
commissions on member generated activity through its member offers programme. Income is accounted on an
accrual basis.

Employee termination benefits are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are to be
settled within 12 months. Where the termination benefits are expected to be due more than 12 months after
reporting date, the amounts are discounted using market yields on Australian Corporate Bonds with terms to
maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(v) Interest income and expense

(iv) Superannuation

There was no interest on borrowings incurred during the year.

Interest income on bank bills and deposits is recognised on an accrual basis (using the effective interest method,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
investment) where the Entity attains control of a right to receive consideration for an investment.

Liabilities for superannuation are recognised in the provision for employee benefits. The Entity provides
superannuation in accordance with the relevant government legislation.
(v) Workers’ compensation
The Entity maintains Workers’ Compensation cover in accordance with the relevant local requirements.
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(K) INCOME TAX AND OTHER TAXES

(M) PROVISIONS

(i) Income tax

(i) Provisions

The Entity prepares its income tax returns by reference to the application of the principle of mutuality to the
revenue and expenses, and the relevant tax jurisdiction. The principle of mutuality is a common law principle
arising from the premise that individuals cannot profit from themselves. Accordingly, membership receipts from
members are deemed to be mutual income and not subject to income tax, and expenses in connection with mutual
activities are therefore not deductible for taxation purposes. All other receipts and payments are classified in
accordance with taxation legislation in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Entity is liable for other taxes including goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised. The exception is when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered and the Entity
passes either the continuity of ownership test or the same business test.

(ii) Provision for make good
Provisions for make good are recognised when there is a present legal obligation on leases that require the Entity
to restore the leased premises to a required level of condition. As provisions for make good are long term and
payable on the expiry of the lease, the provision for make good is discounted using the applicable pre-tax rate
that reflects the risk and duration of the future liability. The effect of the time value of money from discounting is
recognised as Finance expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

(N) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

(O) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL

Deferred tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.

The carrying values of the Entity’s assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Where assets are revalued, no provision for potential capital gains tax is made because of the long-term nature of
the asset and the existence of accumulated tax losses.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflow, the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(ii) Goods and services tax (GST)

If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets
or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
• where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable
• for receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
In respect of all fees in advance that are subject to GST, a liability for GST payable is raised except for fees in
advance that have a settlement date in respect of the GST liability that occurs prior to balance date at which stage
the liability will have already been settled.
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, is
classified as part of operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority.

(L) OPERATING LEASES
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as an integral part of the total lease expense.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a borrowing cost. The rate used is with reference to the applicable Australian Corporate
Bond rate.
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The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.
An impairment loss and/or reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income immediately.

(P) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
In applying the Entity’s accounting policies, management continually evaluates judgments, estimates and
assumptions based on experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have an
impact on the Entity.
All judgments, estimates and assumptions made are believed to be reasonable, based on the most current set
of circumstances available to management. Actual results may differ under different conditions from when the
judgments, estimates and assumptions were made. Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions made by
management in the preparation of these financial statements are outlined below.
(i) Significant accounting judgments
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Entity assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the
Entity and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. These include the asset’s use and performance,
future expectations, economic and political environments and the assessment of the asset’s carrying value.
If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves value-in-use
calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions.
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Provision for make good
Due to the long-term nature of the provision for make good, the greatest uncertainty is estimating the costs that
will ultimately be incurred.
(ii) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions
Carrying amount of land and buildings
The Entity’s freehold property is recorded at fair value as outlined in Note 2(E)(ii) and Note 8.
Long service leave provision
As disclosed in Note 2(I)(ii), the liability for long service leave is recognised and measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at balance date. In determining the present
value of the liability, future estimates of attrition rates, pay increases through promotion and inflation have been
taken into account.
Allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables
Where receivables are outstanding beyond normal trading terms, the likelihood of recovery of these receivables is
assessed by management on an individual account basis. The impairment loss is outlined in Note 7.
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience as well as future expectations
on use, lease terms (for leased equipment), and turnover policies (for motor vehicles). In addition, the condition of the
assets is assessed at least annually and considered against their remaining useful life. Adjustments to useful lives
are made when considered necessary. Depreciation and/or amortisation charges are included in Notes 8 and 9.

MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The main components of market risk to the Entity are interest rate risk and currency risk.
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that movements in variable interest rates will affect financial performance by
increasing interest expenses or reducing interest income.
Interest rate risk arises from financial assets and liabilities that are subject to floating interest rates. The Entity’s
exposure to market interest rates relates primarily to cash and cash equivalents.
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in exchange rates.
The Entity is exposed to currency risk as it has foreign operations in New Zealand. The Entity manages currency
risk by a natural hedge through having adequate receipts and cash reserves in New Zealand dollars to pay New
Zealand dollar payments. In addition, currency risk is managed by forecasting expected purchases denominated in
a foreign currency and monitoring exchange rates and foreign cash balances.
The Entity is exposed to currency risk as it has foreign operations in United Kingdom, Hong Kong and Singapore.
However, at 30 June 2015, these activities were immaterial and the risk was not significant.
The freehold Erskine St property is exposed to fluctuations in the Sydney commercial property market. Refer to
Note 8 for details of the valuation.
At balance date, the Entity had the following exposure to interest rates:

(Q) AMALGAMATION

Principal subject
to floating
interest rate

Principal subject
to fixed interest
rate

Non-interest
bearing

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

33,981

16,753

-

50,734

Trade receivables

-

-

4,859

4,859

Other receivables

-

-

4,123

4,123

33,981

16,753

8,982

59,716

Trade and other payables

-

-

(8,069)

(8,069)

Total financial liabilities

-

-

(8,069)

(8,069)

22,867

23,395

-

46,262

Trade receivables

-

-

3,483

3,483

Other receivables

-

-

318

318

22,867

23,395

3,801

50,063

Trade and other payables

-

-

(9,044)

(9,044)

Total financial liabilities

-

-

(9,044)

(9,044)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and are included in other expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
When the Entity acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

(R) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
On amalgamation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars and
differences are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the Foreign currency
translation reserve. Refer to Note 14 for details on the foreign currency translation reserve.
Post amalgamation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at 30 June into Australian
dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at reporting date, with impacts on the Statement of profit or loss
translated at the average monthly exchange rate prevailing at dates of the transactions entered during the course
of the year. These exchange differences are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the
Foreign currency translation reserve.

3. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Entity’s principal financial instruments are comprised of cash and receivables.
The Entity manages its exposure to key financial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policy. The
objective of the policy is to support the delivery of the Entity’s financial targets while protecting future financial security.
The main risks arising from the Entity’s financial instruments are
• market risk
• credit risk
• liquidity risk.
The Entity uses different methods to measure and manage the risks to which it is exposed. These include:
• monitoring levels of exposure to interest rates
• monitoring assessments of market forecasts for interest rates
• ageing analysis and monitoring of specific credit balances to manage credit risk
• liquidity risk monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

The Board reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks. The policies are summarised below.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

CREDIT RISK

The following sensitivity is based on interest rate risk exposures in existence at balance date.

Credit risk refers to the loss that the Entity would incur if a debtor or other counterparty defaults under its
contractual obligations.

A sensitivity of 50 basis points shift in a full year has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the
current level of short-term Australian interest rates.
At 30 June 2015, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax surplus and members’ funds would have been affected as follows:

Judgment of reasonably possible movements

If there was 50 basis points higher in interest rates
with all other variables held constant
If there was 50 basis points lower in interest rates
with all other variables held constant

Post tax surplus and Members’ Funds
increase/(decrease)
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

254

231

(254)

(231)

Management believes that the Entity does not have a concentration of credit risk. The Entity’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the cash at bank, short-term deposits and receivables held.

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of the Entity’s operational liquidity requirements, the Entity:
• will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the due date
• will be forced to sell financial assets at a value less than what they are worth, or
• may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset at all.
To help reduce these risks, the Entity has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and
cash equivalents to be maintained.

As the Entity manages currency risk by a natural hedge through having adequate receipts and cash reserves in
New Zealand dollars to pay New Zealand dollar payments, the expected currency risk is not significant. However
for the purpose of disclosing sensitivity analysis, a reasonably possible strengthening or weakening of the AUD
against the NZD of 5% at 30 June 2015 with all other variables held constant, would affect the foreign currency
translation reserve by the amounts shown below:
New Zealand Dollar (NZD) denominated financial assets and liabilities

The Entity receives a substantial part of its cash inflows at the beginning and end of the financial year and
manages its expenditure within these cash inflows and approved funding arrangements.
The following table details the Entity’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
prepared based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Entity can be required to pay.

2015

2014

NZD $’000

NZD $’000

Cash and cash equivalents

9,586

-

Trade and other receivables

3,708

-

(2,303)

-

10,991

-

Trade and other payables
Net financial assets

Credit risk would arise from the financial assets of the Entity, which include cash at bank, short-term deposits and
trade and other receivables. The Entity’s exposure to credit risk in relation to cash at bank and short-term deposits
is limited due to the practice of only depositing funds with Westpac, ANZ, HSBC or Natwest. The Entity’s exposure
to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables is limited as there are a large number of low value individual
debtors located in multiple geographical areas. Receivable balances are monitored on a regular basis, with the
result that the Entity’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Less than 6 months

6 to 12 months

1 to 5 years

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

(6,204)

(148)

(1,717)

(8,069)

(6,204)

(148)

(1,717)

(8,069)

(7,362)

(72)

(1,610)

(9,044)

(7,362)

(72)

(1,610)

(9,044)

2015
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2014
Judgment of reasonably possible movements
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Equity increase/(decrease)
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

If there was 5% revaluation in AUD against the NZD
with all other variables held constant

(892)

-

If there was 5% devaluation AUD against the NZD
with all other variables held constant

1,090

-
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Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
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4. Revenue and expenses

5. Income tax

(A) REVENUE

(A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Subscriptions and related revenue

56,792

50,927

Education and other services

51,354

43,668

108,146

94,595

Total revenue

Rent

866

754

Royalties

533

321

1,295

1,462

(9)

(3)

2,685

2,534

Other revenue/(losses)
Total other income

Total revenue and other income

110,831

97,129

(B) EXPENSES
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Building and plant

813

810

Furniture and equipment

488

498

Computer equipment

639

317

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises

878

832

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

652

437

4

7

3,474

2,901

1,481

933

4,955

3,834

Motor vehicles
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of computer software
Depreciation and amortisation of total property, plant and equipment and
computer software

Superannuation

Bad debts written off
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Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

Aggregate income tax expense

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

(1,662)

(159)

15

12

1,647

147

-

-

(B) N
 UMERICAL RECONCILIATION between tax benefit recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and prima facie income tax
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Surplus after tax

6,194

498

Prima facie tax expense at the rate of 30% (2014: 30%)

1,858

149

15

12

9

93

New premises rent holiday

(2)

-

Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdiction

12

-

(3,539)

(401)

1,647

147

-

-

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Entertainment

Mutual activities
Tax losses carried forward to future years
Aggregate income tax expense

At balance date, accumulated revenue tax losses of $28,983,000 (2014: $23,493,000) existed, giving rise to
a potential future tax benefit. The potential deferred tax asset attributable to the revenue tax losses are not
recognised, as realisation is not probable. The deferred tax asset for revenue tax losses, which will offset future
non-mutual income, will only be utilised if:
• future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be realised
• the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with, and
• no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Entity in realising the benefit.

Employee benefits expense
Wages, salaries and termination costs

Current income tax (benefit)

Tax losses carried forward to future years

Other income

Interest

The major components of income tax are:

40,880

41,827

2,929

3,081

43,809

44,908

55

30

Net deferred tax liabilities not recognised in respect of temporary differences amount to $2,849,000 (2014:
$2,205,000).

FINANCIAL REPORT 2015

99

6. Cash and cash equivalents

7. Trade and other receivables
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Cash at bank and on hand

33,981

22,867

Short-term deposits

16,753

23,395

50,734

46,262

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Trade receivables (a)

5,491

3,516

Allowance for impairment loss

(632)

(33)

4,859

3,483

Current

Non-trade receivables (b)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank which is at call and which earned interest at
floating rates and short-term deposits which earned interest at fixed rates.

Other receivables

4,123

318

Prepayments

2,997

2,674

At 30 June 2015, the Entity had no available borrowing facilities.

Total trade and other receivables

11,979

6,475

RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS AFTER TAX TO CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Non-current

350

350

(350)

(350)

-

-

Surplus after tax

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

6,194

498

Non-trade receivables (c)
Loan receivable
Provision for impairment
Net loan receivable
			

Adjustment:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment

3,474

2,901

9

3

1,481

933

(1,555)

(1,351)

3,409

2,486

(Increase) of net working capital liabilities gained through amalgamation
(refer to Note 25)

(11,643)

-

(Decrease)/increase in receivables

(5,504)

597

(975)

2,720

(2,426)

3,141

8,541

(8,216)

(12,007)

(1,758)

(2,404)

1,226

Other losses
Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest received

Changes in working capital:

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in fees in advance

Net cash flows from operating activities
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(a) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms. A provision for impairment
loss has been made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables determined by assessment made
by management when there is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired. A net
impairment charge of $220,000 (2014: $36,000) has been recognised by the Entity in the current year.
These amounts are included in the Other expenses line item in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.
Included in the Entity’s trade receivables are debtors with a carrying amount of $2,514,000 (2014: $1,395,000)
which were past due at the reporting date but not considered impaired as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the Entity considers the amounts are still recoverable. The Entity does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
All other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due.
Based on the credit quality of these other receivables, it is expected that those amounts will be received when
due.
The Entity has no receivables with renegotiated credit terms that would have been past due under the original
terms and conditions.
(b) Current non-trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally payable at call. There are
no non-trade receivables that are past due at the reporting date.
(c) The Entity, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, has lent funds to the
Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) as agreed under a Memorandum of Understanding. The noncurrent loan to AAT is $350,000 before interest, which is charged monthly based on the 90-day bank bill rate
plus 0.5%. Management has assessed the AAT loan, and an impairment provision was created for the entire
amount. The first repayment instalment is due on 30 June 2016.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

2015

2014

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

2,345

2,088

Past due but not impaired:
1,134

841

61 – 90 days

726

359

> 90 days

654

195

2,514

1,395

21

-

31 – 60 days

-

-

61 – 90 days

-

-

611

33

632

33

5,491

3,516

Past due and impaired

> 90 days

Total

55,387

56,200

4,905

5,210

(3,638)

(3,573)

1,267

1,637

Computer equipment – at cost

4,551

3,503

Less accumulated depreciation

(3,379)

(3,324)

1,172

179

8,726

8,645

(6,198)

(5,320)

2,528

3,325

7,570

4,222

(2,815)

(2,175)

4,755

2,047

Motor vehicles – at cost

104

94

Less accumulated depreciation

(98)

(94)

6

-

65,115

63,388

Furniture and equipment – at cost

31 – 60 days

Current

Freehold property – at fair value

Less accumulated depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises – at cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises – at cost
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:
Balance at beginning of financial year

Less accumulated amortisation
33

27

Increase in provision due to amalgamation

434

-

Net charge for the year

220

36

Amounts written off

(55)

(30)

Balance at end of financial year

632

33

Total property, plant and equipment
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RECONCILIATIONS

RECONCILIATIONS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Freehold property
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Increment

Total

56,200

48,000

63,388

56,740

Acquired due to amalgamation (refer to Note 25)

4,087

-

1,398

543

-

9,010

(11)

(4)

(3,474)

(2,901)

(273)

-

65,115

63,388

-

9,010

Additions

(813)

(810)

Increment in freehold property

55,387

56,200

1,637

2,076

Acquired due to amalgamation

35

-

Additions

94

61

Disposals

(11)

(2)

(488)

(498)

-

-

1,267

1,637

179

456

656

-

Additions

1,032

41

Disposals

-

(1)

(639)

(317)

Depreciation expense
Furniture and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

Depreciation expense
Foreign exchange revaluation
Computer equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Acquired due to amalgamation

Depreciation expense
Foreign exchange revaluation

(56)

-

1,172

179

Fixtures and fittings on freehold premises
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year
Additions

3,325

3,726

81

431

(878)

(832)

2,528

3,325

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

2,047

2,475

Acquired due to amalgamation

3,385

-

Additions

191

10

Disposals

-

(1)

Depreciation expense

(652)

(437)

Foreign exchange revaluation

(216)

-

4,755

2,047

Depreciation expense
Fixtures and fittings on leasehold premises

Disposals
Depreciation expense
Foreign exchange revaluation
Carrying amount at end of the financial year

(A) MOTOR VEHICLES
Motor vehicles are either provided to certain senior staff in accordance with approved employment arrangements
or purchased for marketing purposes.

(B) VALUATION TECHNIQUES, INPUTS AND PROCESSES
The fair value of freehold property is a directors’ valuation and has taken into account an impairment test, prior
year’s McGees Property (NSW) Pty Ltd’s valuation and updated market conditions.
The valuation technique for freehold property and the inputs used in fair value measurement are disclosed in the
table below:
Valuation technique

Key inputs

Market approach – Land is valued based on comparable
property sales transactions from McGees’ prior year valuation
report and management’s updated assessment of valuation
parameters.

• Comparable property sales values

Depreciated replacement cost (DRC) – Building is valued based
on a DRC. DRC is the current replacement cost of an asset less
accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost
to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or
obsolescence of the asset.

• Allowance for location, topography,
construction, age, condition and size
• Observation of relevant market conditions
during the year and as at the time of
valuation

The highest and best use of the freehold property is considered to be its current use.

Motor vehicles
Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

-

7

11

-

Depreciation expense

(4)

(7)

Foreign exchange revaluation

(1)

-

6

-

Acquired due to amalgamation
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10. Capital work-in-progress

(C) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as the adjustments made
to the observable data of comparable properties are considered significant and require judgment to be exercised
by the directors.

2015
$’000
Capital work-in-progress

Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total fair value

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

-

-

55,387

55,387

-

-

55,387

55,387

2014
$’000

1,917

-

Capital work-in-progress includes software undergoing development and uncompleted building works. The
amounts are expected to be ready for completion in the next financial year.

2015
Freehold property

11. Fees in advance
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Members’ fees

36,119

27,946

Chartered Accountants Program and training course fees

8,063

7,463

423

655

44,605

36,064

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2014
Freehold property

-

-

56,200

56,200

-

-

56,200

56,200

Other

(D) RECONCILIATION OF LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The entire freehold property amount is categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers
between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current or previous financial year.

12. Trade and other payables

(E) SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ON UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS
Unobservable inputs
Positive and negative adjustments for location,
topography, construction, age, condition, and size.
These adjustments are made by the directors. The
cumulative net impact of these adjustments are
-11.4% to 10.0% of the total value of the freehold
property.

Sensitivity of fair value measurement to changes
in unobservable inputs
Current

Significant increases in the positive adjustments or
decreases in the negative adjustments would result in a
higher fair value of freehold property.
Significant decreases in the positive adjustments or
increases in the negative adjustment would result in a
lower value of freehold property.

Trade payables

4,715

4,759

Other payables

1,340

2,531

Lease liabilities

297

144

6,352

7,434

1,717

1,610

1,717

1,610

Non-current
Lease liabilities

9. Intangibles
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

10,555

5,763

(5,865)

(4,401)

4,690

1,362

Carrying amount at beginning of the financial year

1,362

1,684

Acquired due to amalgamation

1,435

-

Additions

3,464

611

Disposals

-

-

(1,481)

(933)

(90)

-

4,690

1,362

Computer software
Less accumulated amortisation

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not billed
to the Entity. Payables are normally settled on 30-day terms and no interest is incurred on these payables.

13. Provisions
2015
$’000

Reconciliation of Intangibles

Amortisation
Foreign exchange revaluation
Carrying amount at end of the financial year
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2014
$’000

Current
Employee entitlements

4,573

6,844

4,573

6,844

Employee entitlements

405

593

Leasehold make good provision

486

453

891

1,046

Non-current
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14. Reserves and accumulated surpluses

15. Commitments

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

The property revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in the value of the property. The
reserves are not distributable to members under the terms of the Supplemental Royal Charter of the Entity.

Operating leases – New Zealand and state branch office space

Movements in reserves:

Within one year

3,985

2,597

After one year but not later than five years

9,903

7,579

713

1,356

14,601

11,532

892

1,325

1,263

2,469

-

294

2,155

4,088

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

More than five years

Amalgamation reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year

-

-

The leases are all non-cancellable operating leases.

Increase due to amalgamation (refer Note 25)

6,078

-

Expenditure commitments

Balance at end of the financial year

6,078

-

Within one year
After one year but not later than five years

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year

More than five years
-

(Decrement) on foreign currency translation of foreign operations

(464)

Balance at end of the financial year

(464)

-

-

ACCOUNTING PROFESSIONAL & ETHICAL STANDARDS BOARD (APESB)

Property revaluation reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Increment on revaluation of property (refer Note 8)
Balance at end of the financial year

Expenditure commitments relate to the Entity’s IT software licence fees, subscriptions and contributions to
universities for research.

16,397

7,387

-

9,010

16,397

16,397

48,092

47,594

6,194

498

54,286

48,092

The Entity, in conjunction with CPA Australia and the Institute of Public Accountants, contributes funds to the
APESB as agreed under a Memorandum of Agreement. The Entity expects to contribute an amount of $463,150
(2015: $461,260) during the 2016 financial year.

16. Contingent liabilities

Movements in accumulated surpluses:
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus after tax
Balance at end of the financial year

Indemnities for bank guarantees to the lessors of premises
occupied under operating leases

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

1,056

1,033

2015

2014

$

$

275,000

175,831

132,528

315,365

400

567

132,928

315,932

17. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit of financial statements
Other services:
Consulting costs
Other services

The auditor also provided audit services to the Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered
Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund on an honorary basis.
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18. Unlisted shares in other entities

20. Financial instruments

The Entity has an interest in the following corporations:

FAIR VALUES
Percentage of ownership

Name of corporation

Country of
incorporation

2015

2014

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited

Australia

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited

Australia

100%

100%

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(Singapore) Private Limited

Singapore

100%

-

Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong

100%

-

CAANZ (UK) Limited

United Kingdom

100%

The estimated net fair values of financial assets and liabilities held at balance date are represented by their
carrying amounts. The net fair value of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the asset could be
exchanged or the liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties after allowing for transaction costs.
Financial assets and liabilities by categories:

Notes

Total

Loans and
receivables
measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

$’000

$’000

$’000

2015
Current financial assets

ICAA Nominees Pty Limited was deregistered on 10 August 2014 and was previously a dormant entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

6

50,734

50,734

-

The Entity controls New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants as it has ability to use its power to affect the
amount of return from this Entity.

Trade receivables

7

4,859

4,859

-

Other receivables

7

4,123

4,123

-

Total current financial assets

59,716

59,716

-

Total financial assets

59,716

59,716

-

12

(6,352)

-

(6,352)

12

(1,717)

-

(1,717)

(8,069)

-

(8,069)

51,647

59,716

(8,069)

Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited is the Trustee for Chartered Accountants Scholarship
Fund and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund. The Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund
and Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund’s purpose is to provide scholarships and to provide
financial assistance to people in financial hardship respectively.
The Chartered Accountants Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and
Chartered Accountants Necessitous Circumstances Fund have not been consolidated as the Entity does not have
the ability to use its power to affect the amount of return from these entities.
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (Singapore) Private Limited, Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand (Hong Kong) Limited, CAANZ (UK) Limited and New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants
have not been consolidated as they are immaterial to the Entity’s results.

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Refer to Note 25 for details of the amalgamation between NZICA and the Entity.

Total financial liabilities

19. Employee entitlements and superannuation arrangements

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

The aggregate employment liability is comprised of:

Accrued wages, salaries and on-costs
Provisions (current)
Provisions (non-current)

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

977

1,469

4,573

6,844

405

593

5,955

8,906

2014
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

6

46,262

46,262

-

Trade receivables

7

3,483

3,483

-

Other receivables

7

318

318

-

Total current financial assets

50,063

50,063

-

Total financial assets

50,063

50,063

-

(7,434)

-

(7,434)

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

12

Non-current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
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12

(1,610)

-

(1,610)

(9,044)

-

(9,044)

41,019

50,063

(9,044)
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21. Related party transactions

22. Director and executive disclosures

The Entity made payments of a nature detailed below to certain parties, including partners or employees of
director-related entities. The payments were made to all parties on the same terms and conditions:

(A) DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

• gifts and fees to guest speakers at Training & Development events
• author, group leader, reviewer, exam setting and exam marking fees in respect of the Chartered Accountants
Program modules
• reviewer fees in respect of the Quality and Practice Review Programme.

(i) Directors

The Entity also received fees from certain parties, including director-related entities. The fees were received from
all parties under the same terms and conditions. The fees include registration fees for attendance at training and
development events, fees in respect of enrolment of students in Chartered Accountants Program modules, the
Quality and Practice Review Programme, fees in respect of attendances at networking functions and membership
subscriptions.
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that were entered into with director-related entities
for the relevant financial year.
All the following transactions were carried out on normal terms and conditions during the year:
Director

Director-related entity

Transaction detail and terms

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

M Jack FCA

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Professional services and consulting

166

9

M Waldron FCA

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Presentation of educational courses,
contributions and consultancy fees

94

154

KPMG

Consulting, presentation of
educational courses and exam
supervision fees

D Scammell FCA

33

M Jack FCA

Appointed 15 December 2014

F Hutchings FCA

Appointed 15 December 2014

A Waters FCA
M Blake FCA
M Forde FCA
M Waldron FCA
N Paviour-Smith FCA

Appointed 15 December 2014

D McKay

Appointed 15 December 2014

L McCann

Appointed 15 December 2014

M Ashton FCA

Retired 15 December 2014

D Scammell FCA

Retired 15 December 2014

D Robjent FCA

Retired 15 December 2014

P Green FCA

Retired 15 December 2014

B Miels FCA

Retired 30 June 2015

3
(ii) Executives*

B Miels FCA

Edwards Marshall Pty Ltd

Consulting

2

-

P Green FCA

University of QLD

Sponsorship and donation

8

-

L McCann FCA

Grant Thornton

Internal audit services and
presentation of education courses

52

67

D McKay FCA

Genesis Energy NZ

Electricity

8

-

The Entity also provides complimentary accounting and administration services for the Chartered Accountants
Benevolent Foundation Limited, Chartered Accountants Scholarship Fund and the Chartered Accountants
Necessitous Circumstances Fund.

L White FCA

Chief Executive Officer

K Picard FCA

Chief Financial Officer

R Ward FCA

Head of Leadership and Advocacy

J Dale FCA

Head of Education

S Grant FCA

Head of Members

L Morta

Chief Information Officer

J Abbott

Head of People and Culture

K Patterson

New Zealand Country Head

Appointed 1 January 2015

*Executives are classified as the Chief Executive Officer and their Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) who are the
authorised decision makers for the organisation.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
(i) Compensation policy
Remuneration of the directors and Senior Leadership Team is determined and approved by the Executive
Remuneration Committee, which assists the Board. The Executive Remuneration Committee also reviews
remuneration levels for all employees. The Committee is appointed by the Board and comprises three members of
the Board (currently Michael Forde (Chair), Murray Jack and Mary Waldron). The Board confirms the membership
of the Committee and appoints the Chair annually. The Chair of the Board is not eligible to be the Chair of the
Committee.
To ensure equity in our remuneration decisions the Entity uses salary bands to establish remuneration ranges for
jobs of similar value. The Entity benchmarks jobs for job sizing using a well-established methodology that provides
remuneration ranges for salary bands based on job size. In structuring remuneration ranges the Entity aims to
remain competitive and positioned appropriately for the scope and size of its operations.
The approach to determining the fee for directors and office bearers uses external market data and the
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23. Indemnification of directors and officers

benchmarks approved by the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Council as follows:
•
•
•
•

Director: Benchmark data to be utilised.
Audit and Risk Chair: Benchmark data to be utilised.
Chair: Benchmark set at two times director fees.
President: Benchmark set at 1.2 times Chair’s fee.

(ii) Compensation of directors and executives for the year
2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Compensation by category
Short-term benefits

3,792

2,503

Other long-term benefits

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

3,792

2,503

The By-laws of the Entity indemnify the directors and officers, and provide that each director and officer:
• shall be indemnified against any losses or expenses that such a director or officer incurs or becomes liable to pay
by reason of any act or deed done by the director or officer in the discharge of that director’s or officer’s duties,
except to the extent that such act or deed arises from the director’s or officer’s own wilful default
• shall not be liable for the acts of any person or for joining in any receipt or document or for any act of conformity
or for any loss or expense happening to the Entity unless it arises from the director’s or officer’s own wilful
default.

24. Members and members’ liability
Total membership increased to 95,008 as of 30 June 2015 (2014: 63,683), predominantly due to the
amalgamation with NZICA on 31 December 2014 and organic net membership growth in Australia and New
Zealand.
In terms of the Entity’s Charter and By-laws:
• members are not entitled to receive a dividend from the Entity
• members who cease to be members remain liable to the Entity for all monies which at the time of ceasing to be
a member were due by that member to the Entity.

2015
number

2014
number

$0 – $29,999

5

1

$30,000 – $59,999

6

7

$60,000 – $89,999

2

2

On 31 December 2014 NZICA transferred all its assets and liabilities to the Entity as part of the amalgamation,
which both entities’ members voted in favour of. The amalgamation enables the Entity to achieve greater scale,
increased member services, accelerated member growth, and a greater global recognition and influence.

-

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NZICA as at the date of acquisition were:

The number of directors whose remuneration falls within the following bands is:

$90,000 – $99,999

1

$100,000 – $119,999

-

1

$120,000 – $149,999

-

-

$150,000 – $159,999

-

1

2015
number

2014
number

$0–$99,999

-

1

$100,000–$149,999

-

2

$150,000–$199,999

1

2

The number of executives whose remuneration falls within the following bands is:

$200,000–$249,999

1

-

$250,000–$299,999

-

-

$300,000–$349,999

1

1

$350,000–$399,999

1

-

$400,000 - $449,999

3

-

$450,000 - $749,999

-

-

$750,000 - $799,999

-

1

$800,000 - $849,999

1

-

(iii) Loans to key management personnel
There are no loans between key management personnel and the Entity.
(iv) Other transactions with key management personnel and their personally related entities
There are no other transactions with key management personnel or their personally related entities.

25. Amalgamation

Fair value on acquisition date
$’000
Cash and cash equivalents

12,199

Receivables and other assets

2,996

Property plant and equipment

4,087

Intangible assets

1,435

Total assets

20,717

Fees in advance

10,928

Payables and other liabilities
Provisions
Total liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

2,632
1,079
14,639

6,078

The fair value amounts represent the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer the liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal market at the acquisition date.
The gross amount of trade receivables is $1,779,000. The fair value of trade receivables amounted to $1,345,000,
which is the amount expected to be collected and within the $2,996,000 receivables and other assets amount
shown above. The difference between the gross amount of trade receivables and fair value of trade receivables
represents the expected doubtful debts..
The valuation technique used for plant and equipment was market comparison – where the value of plant and
equipment was considered against prices for similar items in similar age and condition.
Intangible assets represent software and licences. The valuation technique used for intangible assets was market
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comparison and the value of the intangible asset was considered against prices for similar intangible assets with
similar functionality and useful lives.
There was no consideration paid or payable to NZICA or the members of NZICA in respect of the amalgamation.
Instead, members of NZICA were provided equal membership rights in the Entity on acquisition date. As both the
Entity and NZICA are not-for-profit organisations and members do not have rights to distribution of profits, the
value of the Entity’s membership rights are deemed to be equivalent value of the fair value of net assets received
on acquisition date. Hence, there was no goodwill or gain on amalgamation.

26. Events after the reporting period

Directors’ declaration
The directors of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand declare that the financial statements and
notes set out on pages 83 to 116, which have been prepared as required under the By-laws of the Entity:
(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements
(b) present fairly the financial position of the Entity as at 30 June 2015 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.
In the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Entity will be able to pay its debts
as and when they become due and payable.

On 6 August 2015 Justice Dobson released his judgement on a case regarding alleged defamation from NZICA
against CPA Australia and found that the claims of defamation could not be substantiated as there was no
evidence to show pecuniary loss by CPA Australia.
Apart from the above mentioned event, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year
and the date of this Financial Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the
opinion of the directors of the Entity, to affect significantly the operations of the Entity or the state of affairs of the
Entity in future financial years.
M Jack FCA
Director

M Blake FCA
Director

Sydney, 15 October 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(“CA ANZ”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
The directors of CA ANZ are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and for such
internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report.

OUR NATIONAL OFFICES

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

AUSTRALIA

NEW ZEALAND

33 Erskine Street,
Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 9985, Sydney NSW 2001

Level 7, Chartered Accountants House
50 Customhouse Quay, Wellington, New Zealand
PO Box 11342, Wellington, New Zealand

Phone 1300 137 322
+61 2 9290 5660 from outside Australia
Monday–Friday, excluding Public Holidays
8.30am–6pm (AEST)

Phone 0800 4 69422 FREE
+64 4 474 7840 from outside New Zealand
Monday–Friday, excluding Public Holidays
8.30am–5pm (NZ time)

Fax +61 2 9262 1512
Email service@charteredaccountantsanz.com

Fax +64 4 473 6303
Email service@charteredaccountantsanz.com

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian professional
accounting bodies.

Opinion
In our opinion:
(a)	the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand as of 30 June 2015 and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Interpretations; and
(b)	the financial report also complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Ernst & Young

Meredith Scott FCA
Partner

Sydney, 15 October 2015

For regional addresses and contact details visit charteredaccountantsanz.com
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thank you!
Thanks for being part of our success this year.
If you have any feedback on this report, please get in touch.
annualreport@charteredaccountantsanz.com

